Scrutiny Standing

Panel Agords SCRUTINY

Epping Forest District Council

Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel
Tuesday, 20th March, 2012

Place: Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
Time: 7.00 pm

Democratic Services A Hendry - The Office of the Chief Executive

Officer: Tel: 01992 564246 Email:

democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:

Councillors D Jacobs (Chairman), G Waller (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, R Bassett,
K Chana, R Cohen, J Hart, P Keska, S Murray, S Packford and W Pryor

SUBSTITUTE NOMINATION DEADLINE:
18:00

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)

(Assistant to the Chief Executive) To report the appointment of any substitute
members for the meeting.

3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
(Assistant to the Chief Executive). To declare interests in any items on the agenda.

In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements.

This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member.

Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a
matter.



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 20 March 2012

10.

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING (Pages 3 - 10)

To consider and agree the notes of the meeting held on 15 November 2011.

TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 11 - 14)

(Chairman/Lead Officer) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has agreed the Terms
of Reference of this Panel and associated Work Programme. This is attached. The
Panel are asked at each meeting to review both documents.

SICKNESS ABSENCES (Pages 15 - 24)

(Director of Corporate Support Services) To consider the attached report.
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL MONITORING (Pages 25 - 48)

(Director of Finance and ICT) To consider the attached report.

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY UPDATE (Pages 49 - 54)

(Director of Finance and ICT) To consider the attached report.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2011/12 -QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE
MONITORING (Pages 55 - 110)

(Office of the Deputy Chief Executive) To consider the attached report.

REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

To consider which reports are ready to be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee at its next meeting.



Agenda ltem 4

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
NOTES OF A MEETING OF FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY
PANEL
HELD ON TUESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2011
IN COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING
AT 7.00 -8.55 PM

Members D Jacobs (Chairman), G Waller (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens
Present: (Chairman of Council), R Bassett, R Cohen, J Hart, D C Johnson (Deputy
Portfolio Holder (Estates)) and P Keska

Other members Ms R Brookes, A Lion, Mrs M McEwen, G Mohindra, J Philip, D Stallan,

present: Mrs L Wagland and C Whitbread
Apologies for K Chana (Deputy Portfolio Holder (Safer and Greener)), S Murray,
Absence: S Packford and W Pryor

Officers Present D Macnab (Acting Chief Executive), J Gilbert (Director of Environment and
Street Scene), A Hall (Director of Housing), J Preston (Director of
Planning and Economic Development), S Bacon (Senior Systems Support
Officer), T Carne (Public Relations and Marketing Officer), P Maddock
(Assistant Director (Accountancy)), P Maginnis (Assistant Director
(Human Resources)), D Newton (Assistant Director (ICT)), J Twinn
(Assistant Director (Benefits)), S Tautz (Performance Improvement
Manager), S Mitchell (PR Website Editor), A Hendry (Democratic Services
Officer) and S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services Officer)

33. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
The Chairman reminded everyone present that the meeting would be broadcast live
to the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the webcasting of its
meetings.

34. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)
The Panel noted that Councillor D Johnson was substituting for Councillor Chana.

35. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Pursuant to the Council Code for Members Conduct, Councillor Richard Bassett
declared a personal interest in agenda item 7, Epping Forest District Council
Website, by virtue of working for Hewlett Packard. He declared that his interests were
not prejudicial and that he would remain for the discussion and consideration of the
item.

36. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 20 September 2011 were agreed.

37. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME

The Panel noted their Terms of Reference and Work Programme.

38. SICKNESS ABSENCE

Page



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel = Tuesday, 15 November 2011

39.

With the Panel's agreement the item on Sickness Absence (agenda item 10a) was
taken next.

The Assistant Director of Corporate Support Services (HR), Paula Maginnis,
introduced the report on the Council’s absence figures for quarter two in 2011/12. It
included absence figures by Directorate, the number of employees who have met the
trigger level, those who had more than 4 weeks’ absence and reasons for absence.

It was noted that the quarter 2 figure was below the target level as well as being
below the 2010/11 figures. Two thirds of staff had not taken any sick absence during
this period. Currently the Council’s target for sickness absence under KPI 10 for
2011/12 was an average of 7.75 days per employee. The Council’s figure for quarter
2 was 1.64 days. 3.9% of staff had met the trigger levels or were above; 22.8% had
sickness absence but did not meet the triggers and 73.3% had no absences.

Ms Maginnis asked the Panel if they still wished to receive this data or were there
other things that they would like information on.

The Panel indicated that they liked the breakdown of the information, which showed
the areas doing well, as well as the types of illness involved and the fact it helped you
drill down into the information. They noted that the situation was improving year on
year although it appeared that Local Government figures were higher than private
industry. Although it had been recently noted by the press that EFDC compared very
favourably with private industry on levels of sickness.

It was noted that a lot of problems seemed to be musclo-skeletal related; was this
anything to do with RSI? Ms Maginnis replied that there were no recent recordings of
that, although there had been a spate of broken bones recently.

RESOLVED:
That the report on sickness absence for quarter 2 be noted.
EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL WEBSITE

The Public Relations and Marketing Officer, Tom Carne, made the following
corrections to the report published in the agenda. In paragraph 11 the KPI referred to
as KPI 01 should be KPI 02; in paragraph 15 the KPI referred to as KPI 02 should be
KP 04 and the same again in paragraph 16.

The Panel received a demonstration of the new Council’s website, currently in
development. The current website had been developed over the last ten years using
the Punch Content Management System, costing the council approximately £16,000
per annum to run, including support. This system has now run its course and officers
looked for a more powerful, flexible alternative. They found ‘Joomla’ which was
easier and more efficient to use and would represent a significant potential, long term
financial saving to the council. It was a free open source Content Management
System, and officers had identified savings of £15,000 pa once it went live, with the
possibility of more savings to come.

Stephen Bacon, the Senior Systems Support Officer, took the Panel through a
demonstration of the new site, as it would look on line when up and running. The new
systems would have one big bold image on the home page making it more user
friendly, suitable for the casual browser, with rotating headlines. Officers were also

Page 4



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel = Tuesday, 15 November 2011

looking to put in advertising space on the pages. The home page would report the
Council news, and have a Leaders blog. News feeds would be tailored to each
Directorate and they were also looking at the possibility of putting Town/Parish
Council pages on the site, linking in with “Twitter’. Social media links would also be
on the menu bar. Using free software from ‘Joomla’ officers would be able upload
council’s posts on to these sites as well. So far officers thought that the new website
had only cost the Council €59; and it would have no ongoing costs. They were aiming
for it to be user friendly, with any user having to use a maximum of three clicks to get
to any page on the website, ideally only two; the present system can take up to nine
clicks. Individual users could alter the colour scheme of the pages, change the font
size and have it translated into other languages.

Officers were also looking to integrate the currently separate systems such as the
Planning pages, into the main website and make it more efficient.

Councillor Bassett said that the new site looked good. Residents could pay their
Council Tax on line, but there was some vulnerability in using open source software.
Was it safe to use? Mr Bacon replied that they would be linked to the Capita site for
transactions as they are now. They would not use open source software for
payments.

Councillor Mohindra asked about tracking the use of the site. He was told that
officers could not use ‘Google Analytics’ until the EU had decided on the
implementation of the EU Cookies Directive; as without the use of Cookies a visit to
our site could not be recorded. They were using a free trial system at present but this
would have to be paid for once the free period ended. Officers were also looking to
link this into intranet visits.

Councillor Philip commented that officers were currently tracking visits to the site;
could not other things be monitored such as the number of page loads and response
time be monitored. Mr Bacon replied that monitoring page hits could be valuable over
time, tracking which pages people went to most often etc.

Councillor Philip went on to ask if users could save changes they made to the colour
and font sizes. He was told that they could, but it relied on the use of Cookies.

Councillor Bassett wanted to know if links to other websites and organisations could
be added to our site. He was told that officers were looking at putting in this facility
using Google Search.

The Public Relations and Marketing Officer, Tom Carne, had looked at the indicators
in place and asked that they continue with the current performance indicator
measuring user satisfaction levels (KPI 04). But, they would like to adapt it slightly to
not only measure the people who were ‘very satisfied’ but also the ‘OKs’, the ‘quite
satisfied’ as well as the ‘very satisfied’ as this would give a better statistical database,
and would enable us to revisit how we assessed the website. They would also like to
set a satisfaction level of 80%, which would be well above the current national
average.

Councillor Bassett said that 80% was a very high level to live up to especially in the
first year of a new site. It would be more sensible to set the target at 70% for the first
year and then revisit it next year, when they could set a target for improvement; this
was agreed by the Panel. They also agreed to delete KPI 02 (visits to the Council
Website) and 03 (Quality of the Council Website).

Page®



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel = Tuesday, 15 November 2011

40.

RESOLVED:

(1) That the progress towards the implementation of the new Epping
Forest District Council Website be noted:;

(2) That the Panel recommend that:
o KPI 02 (Visits to the Council Website) and KPI 03 (Quality of
the Council Website) be deleted;

(3) That, pursuant to the deletion of KPI 02, the Director of Finance and
ICT and the Acting Chief executive bring forward proposals for
replacement website visits indicator once the Council’'s new website
has been rolled out and the authority has determined its approach to
meeting the requirements of the European Union Cookies Directive;
and

(4) KPl 04 (Satisfaction with the Council's Website) be amended to
include the people who were OK, Quite Satisfied and Very Satisfied
with the website; achieving a target of 70% for the first year, to be
revised at the end of the year in light of the result.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR 2011/12 QUARTER 2

The Performance Improvement Manager, Mr S Tautz, introduced the report on the
Council’'s performance against its adopted Key Performance Indicators (KPI) for the
second quarter of 2011/12. Members were reminded that a target had been set for at
least 70% of the KPIs to achieve target performance by the end of the year. The
report now had the improvement plans immediately following on to each KPI.

The Panel noted that 14 KPIs (50%) had achieved the second quarter performance
targets and that contrary to the statement in paragraph 13 of the report, KPI 24 (Fly
Tipping) and KPI 48 (Non-decent homes) had met their respective second quarter
targets.

KPI 02 — How many times was our Council website visited — This had just been
deleted.

KPI 30 — What percentage of the invoices we received were paid within 30 days —
noted that there was a problem with Housing, due to staffing shortages and an issue
with building supplies, at present skewing the figures, but this was being rectified.

KPI 31 — What percentage of the district’s annual Council Tax was collected —
officers were complimented for exceeding their targets on this indicator. Councillor
Stallan asked if the number of payment arrangements increased over the last year;
officers were unsure but promised to find out and advise members accordingly. The
Panel noted that there was currently a government consultation being carried out on
Council Tax which may have implications further on.

KPI 33 — On average, how many days did it take us to process new benefit claims —
Councillor Hart said officers were doing well to keep the indicator at just under 27
days especially with two officers down. Officers thought that they would not meet
their target this year. They had just been another resignation and it was hard work for
the officers to maintain standards. It was hoped to fill the vacancies by internal
recruitment.

Page 6



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel = Tuesday, 15 November 2011

41.

Councillor Brookes asked if the number of applications had gone up. She was told
that there were around 9,400 cases at present; three years ago there were 7,500.
The caseload had gone up considerably; also new claims were more difficult to
process, more time consuming.

KPI 34 — On average, how many days did it take us to process notices of a change in
a benefit claimant’s circumstances - Councillor Bassett asked if there was a common
reason for losing staff through resignations. He was told that there was no specific
reasons, some went to London Boroughs and there was uncertainty about the new
Universal Credit system coming in. Experienced staff are leaving and they needed
experienced staff to replace them. They were also unsure if their investigative staff
would be subsumed by the Department for Work and Pensions. There was a lot of
uncertainty at present.

KPI 42 — What percentage of emergency repairs to our council properties were
completed within 24 hours — The Panel noted that a new computer system would be
installed after Christmas by Mears, the Council’'s Repairs Management Contractor
and this should speed up response times.

KPI 46 — How many affordable homes were built in the District — Councillor Brookes
asked about the Open Market Shared Ownership, the joint venture with Broxbourne
Housing Association. She was told that the joint agreement with Broxbourne HA had
achieved a number of applications from tenants and housing applicants; shortlisted
applicants were currently being contacted to undergo a financial assessment.
Unfortunately the KPI target would not be met this year, due to slippage with an
affordable housing scheme in Waltham Abbey. However, the completions would be
achieved next year.

KPI 47 — How many households were housed in temporary accommodation —
Councillor Bassett asked how successful had the Council been in keeping people in
their own homes? He was told officers were preventing around 80% of cases from
resulting in formal homelessness applications. But numbers of homeless applicants
were increasing as more people came to the Council in difficulties. Officers feared it
would only get worse with the new Welfare Reform Bill.

KPI 50 — What was the net increase or decrease in the number of homes in the
district — The Panel noted that if the relevant information had been made available
earlier quarter 1 would have been above the target level.

RESOLVED:

That the first six months of the Council’s performance for 2011/12 in relation
to the monitored Key Performance Indicators adopted for the year be noted.

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL MONITORING

The Assistant Director of Finance, Peter Maddock, introduced the quarterly financial
monitoring report. This report provides a comparison between the original estimate
for the period ended 30 September 2011 and the actual expenditure or income as
applicable.

The Panel noted that:
e The salaries budget showed an underspend of £413,000 or 4.2%, compared
to 3.4% last year;

Pages/



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel = Tuesday, 15 November 2011

42.

¢ Investment interest levels in 2011/12 are above expectations at quarter 2;

e Current indications are that the Council would receive between 86 and 90% of
the original investment back from the Heritable Bank, however this would not
be received until towards the end of 2012/13 at the earliest;

e Building Control income was on track and was slightly up on the previous
year;

e The ring fenced account was looking healthy and was expected to return a
surplus;

e Development Control income at month 6 was £40,000 above expectations;

e Hackney Carriage licensing income was in line with expectations but down
slightly on last year;

e The Housing Repairs Fund showed an underspend of £767,000. It was now
expected that a saving of around £250,000 would occur here;

e The budgets are currently being revisited and where appropriate would be
revised in line with expectations.

Councillor Bassett asked what sort of returns were we getting on our investments?
He was told it was just under 1%, with some longer term investments at 1%.

Councillor Stallan noted that some authorities would receive about a 100% return
from the Icelandic Banks. Would this alter the report? He was told that it would be
only right to wait until it was known for sure what returns the council would get. The
report was based on what was thought was currently the most likely outcome.

Councillor Angold-Stephens asked about the recent burglary at the museum, would
this cost the Council any money for items not covered by the insurance. He was told
that the only cost would be a small excess on some items as all items were covered;
and also any costs for reviewing / improving security arrangements.

RESOLVED:

That the Capital and Revenue Financial Monitoring report for the second
quarter of 2011/12 be noted.

FEES AND CHARGES

The Assistant Director of Finance, Peter Maddock, introduced the annual report on
the proposed fees and charges for the coming year as part of the annual budget
process. This report gave members an opportunity to comment the proposed fees
and charges for 2012/13.

A proposed general increase of 5% was recommended where possible, but it was
noted that in a number of areas this may not be appropriate; also, it was noted that
some fees were set by the Government. Car parking charges were not included in
the report as they were subject to consideration by the Council’'s consultant and a
report would be coming separately to this Panel at a later date. There were also a
number of leisure related fees and charges, waste and the HRA that were proposed
for increases.

Councillor Bassett noted that the charges for pest control for rats and cockroaches
was said to be free. Was this correct? He was told that the Council now had a
contract with ‘Rentokil’, so we received no fees for pest control; the money went
straight to the company. The report was misleading and should be amended
accordingly.

Page 8



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel = Tuesday, 15 November 2011

43.

44,

Councillor Bassett asked why we only charged £10 for dishonoured cheques, as
banks would charge more and we incur this charge from banks. Councillor Mohindra
noted that his bank charged £25 and thought that this was a standard charge. The
Panel agreed that the charge should be increased to £25.

Councillor Whitbread commented that the Council had found more savings than the
£300,000 needed. With this in mind he would not want to increase any fees and
charges next year and give something back to the residents in this difficult economic
situation.

The Chairman noted that there would be some exceptions to the 5% increase but
that this would be up to the Cabinet to decide.

RESOLVED:

That the proposed general policy for the increase in fees and charges of 5%
and the schedules attached to agenda be agreed with the exception of the
charge for dishonoured cheques being raised to £25 and the wording for the

charges for rats and cockroaches being revised, and that this be
recommended to the Cabinet.

REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

To report back to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with a general update on the
reports considered at this meeting.

FUTURE MEETINGS

The dates for the future meetings of this Panel were noted.

Page™®



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda ltem 5

TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDING PANEL

Title: Finance and Performance Management

Status: Standing Panel

Terms of Reference:

Performance Management

1. To review statutory and local performance indicator outturns for the previous year at
the commencement of each municipal year, and to determine the following on an
annual basis:

(@) A basket of ‘Key’ Performance Indicators (KPIs) important to the Council’s
core business and corporate priorities; and

(b)  The monitoring frequency of the KPIs identified by the Panel for the year;

2. To monitor performance against the adopted KPIs throughout the year; and to make
recommendations for corrective action in relation to poorly performing indicators;

Public Consultation

3.  To develop arrangements to directly engage the community in commenting on and
shaping the future direction of services to make them more responsive to local
needs, including the development of proposals for effective consultation through an
annual community conference;

4.  To annually review the consultation exercises undertaken by the council over the
previous year.

Finance

5.  To consider the draft budgets for each portfolio and in so doing to evaluate and rank
proposals for either enhancing or reducing services. Members will need to ensure
consistency between wider policy objectives and financial demands.

6.  To consider financial monitoring reports on key areas of income and expenditure for
each portfolio.

ICT
7.  To monitor and review progress on the implementation of all major ICT systems and
to review the Web-Casting System.

Value For Money

8. To consider the annual Value for Money Analysis, and to identify any areas where
further detailed analysis may be required to be undertaken by a Task and Finish Panel
during the year.

July 2011 Page 11



Essex Local Area Agreement

9. To monitor performance against the performance indicators contained within the
second Essex Local Area Agreement, that the Council ‘has regard to’; and to make
recommendations for corrective action in relation to poorly performing indicators.

Equality and Diversity

10. To undertake an annual review of progress towards the implementation of the
Council's Race Equality, Gender Equality, and Disability Equality Schemes, and
performance in relation to other equality and diversity issues.

Chairman: Clir Jacobs

July 2011 Page 12




¢ abed

Finance and Performance Management Standing Panel (Chairman — D Jacobs)

2011/12

Item

Report Deadline /
Priority

Progress / Comments

Programme of
Future Meetings

(1) Key Performance Indicators —
Performance Outturn 2010/11

Outturn KPI
performance report
considered at the first
meeting of the Scrutiny
Panel in each
municipal year.

Completed - KPI outturn report for 2010/11 to be
considered at the meeting held on 21 June 2011.

(2) Key Performance Indicators —
Performance Monitoring 2011/12

KPI performance report
to be considered on a
quarterly basis.

Quarterly KPI performance report for 2011/12 to be
considered at the meetings to be held on 20 September
2011 (quarter 1), 15 November 2011 (quarter 2) and 20
March 2012 (quarter 3).

(3) Key Performance Indicators —
Development of indicator set for
2012/13

Draft indicator set to be
considered on the
basis of third quarter
KPI performance for
2011/12.

KPI proposals to be considered at the meeting to be held
on 20 March 2012.

(4) Quarterly Financial Monitoring

Reports to be
considered on a
quarterly basis.

First quarter Information to be considered September 11,
2" quarter in January 12 and 3" quarter figures at the
March ’12 meeting.

(5) Annual Consultation Plan

Report considered on
an annual basis.
Report went to the
June ’11 meeting.

Completed - Consultation Plan considered at first meeting
of each municipal year. Report last went to the June 2010
meeting.

2+-June 2011

20-September
15 November
18-Januan2042

{cancelled); and
20 March




i1 ebed

(6) Detailed Portfolio Budgets

Had been last
considered at the
January 2011 meeting
of the Cabinet Finance
Committee.

Considered at the January ‘12 of the Cabinet Finance
Committee - Annual review of the Portfolio Holders
Budgets.

(7) Medium Term Financial
Strategy

January 2012

To review the Council’'s medium term financial strategy
January 2012

(8) Equality and Diversity -
Monitoring and Progress

Progress report
considered at the first
meeting of the Scrutiny
Panel in each
municipal year.

Completed - Progress report for 2010/11 to be considered
at the meeting to be held on 21 June 2011.

(9) Capital Outturn 2009/10 and
use of transitional relief in
2009/10

Went to the June ’11
meeting

Completed - Last considered at the June 2011 meeting

(10) Provisional revenue Outturn
2010/11

Went to the June ’11
meeting

Completed - Last considered at the June 2011 meeting

(11) Fees and Charges

To be considered at
the November 11.

Completed - Last considered at the November 2011
meeting

(12) Sickness Absences

Quarterly reports

Quarterly figures of the Council’s sickness absence
figures. Last considered at the June and September 2011
meetings.

(13) Value for Money and Data
Quality Strategies

September 2011

Completed — September 2011
Progress made against the Council’'s VFM and Data
Quality Strategy.




Agendaltem 6

Report to the Finance and Performance
Management Scrutiny Panel

Date of meeting: 20 March 2012 SC RUT' N Y

Subject: Sickness Absence Epping Forest District Council

Officer contact for further information: Paula Maginnis (01992564536)

Committee Secretary: Adrian Hendry (01992 564246)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:
That the Panel notes the report on sickness absence.
Executive Summary
1. This report provides information on the Council’s absence figures for Q3 in 2011/2012; it
includes absence figures by Directorate, the number of employees who have met the
trigger level, those who have more than 4 weeks absence and reasons for absence.
2. The Council’'s target for sickness absence under KPI110 for 2011/2012 is an average of
7.75 days per employee. The Council’s figure is 1.87 days for Quarter 3 and figures for
each Directorate are set out in paragraph 9 of the report.

3. During Q3, 3.9% of staff met the trigger levels or above, 29.5% had sickness absence but
did not meet the triggers and 66.6% had no absence.

4. Currently, under the Council’'s Managing Absence Policy there are trigger levels for
initiating management action in cases of excessive sickness absence. These are:

(i) during any ‘rolling’ twelve-month period an employee has had 5 or more separate
occasions of absence; or
(i) during any ‘rolling’ twelve-month period an employee has had at least 8 working days
of any combination of un/self certificated, or medically certificated absences.
Reasons for Proposed Decision

To enable members make decisions regarding actions to continue to improve the Council’s
absence figures.

Other Options for Action

For future reports the Panel may wish to include other information or receive no report.

Report:

Introduction

5. The latest figures published by the Industrial Relations Service (for 2010) show that the
average number of days taken as sickness absence in Local Government was 8 days
compared to 6.5 days across all sectors. In manufacturing and production the average

number of days was 6.2 and in private sector services the average was 6.2 days. (These
figures have not been updated for 2011).

Page 15



6. Currently, under the Council’'s Managing Absence Policy there are trigger levels for
initiating management action in cases of excessive sickness absence. These are:

(i) during any ‘rolling’ twelve-month period an employee has had 5 or more separate
occasions of absence; or

(ii) during any ‘rolling’ twelve-month period an employee has had at least 8 working days
of any combination of un/self certificated, or medically certificated absences.

7. In addition to the above a manager should consider referring an employee to
Occupational Health when an employee has been absent from work for at least one
month if there is no estimate when they will be fit to return, or if this is unlikely to be within
a reasonable period.

Quarterly Figures 2010/2011 — 2011/2012

8. The target for sickness absence was revised to 7.75 days for 2011/12 and the Q3 figure
is below target at 1.87 days.

Table 1 below shows the absence figures for each quarter since 2010/2011.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Target
2010/2011 | 1.88 1.81 2.15 2.01 7.85 8
2011/2012 | 1.86 1.64 1.87 7.75
Table 1

Directorate Figures 2010/2011 — 2011/2012

9. Table 2 shows the average number of days lost per employee in each Directorate. The
target figure for Q2 is an average 2.13 days and 5 of the 7 Directorates are below this
figure. Two Directorates are above this target.

Directorate Average | Average Number of Total Average Number of
FTE Days Absence Average Days Absence
2010/2011 Number of | 2011/2012
Days
201011
Q1 Q2 |Q3 | Q4 Q1 Q2 (Q3 | Q4
Office of CE 20.87 0.25|0.51|212|142 |43 1.391.93 | 2.34
Office of DCE | 46.91 0921209 |235(199|7.35 208|212 | 1.71
Corporate 69.69 2.06 | 1.81|2.29|2.26 | 8.42 212 11.08 | 1.13
Support
Services
Environment 112.97 1.70 | 210 | 1.79 | 2.78 | 8.37 1.25|1.75|1.53
& Street Scene
Finance & ICT | 115.62 1.1510.87 | 1.73 | 1.29 | 5.04 1.72 | 1.79 | 2.71
Housing 183.8 3.11 1242|272 |2.01|10.26 1.83|1.52 | 1.94
Planning 68.20 1.07 | 148 | 164 | 1.96 | 6.15 2.7511.75 | 1.60
Table 2

10. This table is represented by a graph which can be found at appendix 1.

Page

16




Long Term Absence 2011/2012

11. For this purpose long term absence has been defined as 4 weeks or over. During Q3 a
total of 13 employees had 4 weeks or more absence. Ten employees had one continuous
period of absence, 2 employees had two periods of absence and 1 employee had 3

periods.

Table 3 provides further detail on these employees.

Quarter Left Returned | Dismissed | Proposed | Still Other
to work Return Absent Arrangements
date
Q3 0 46.1% (6) 0 0 30.8% (4) | 15.4% (2)
(leaving)
7.7% (1) (other
duties)

Table 3

12. At appendix 2 there is a graph which sets out a breakdown of days lost to long term
absence, those who met the trigger level and those below the trigger level. This graph
shows that overall, 27% of lost time for Q3 was due to long term absence, 24% met the

trigger level (and above to 19 days) and 49% was due to short term absence.

Reasons for Absence

13. Table 4 shows the reasons for absence.

Reason Number of | Number of | Number of
Days Q1 Days Q2 Days Q3
2011/2012 | 2011/2012 | 2011/2012

Stomach, liver, kidney, digestion; include 282 295 200.3

diarrhoea, vomiting and other gastro-intestinal

illnesses.

Other musclo-skeletal problems; includes neck, 150.5 196.8 206.9

legs or feet and arms or hands. Also include joint

problems such as arthritis.

Infections, including viral infections such as 132.9 75.3 227.3

influenza, cold, cough and throat infections

Depression, anxiety, mental health and fatigue. 60.6 42.3 87.4

Includes mental illnesses such as anxiety and

nervous debility/disorder (does not include stress)

Stress — Old description 91 0 0

Work related stress 58 30.7 2.9

Non Work related stress 29.1 59.7 16

Chest, respiratory; including asthma, bronchitis, 89 62 26.1

hay fever and chest infections

Back problems 55.1 22.5 52.4

Neurological; headaches and migraines 411 427 26.4

Genito-urinary; menstrual problems 34.5 32 39

Cancer, including all types of cancer and related 30.4 22.6 29.2

treatments

Page 17




Reason Number of | Number of | Number of
Days Q1 Days Q2 Days Q3
2011/2012 2011/2012 2011/2012

Eye, ear, nose and mouth, dental; sinusitis 20.9 56.8 23.8

Pregnancy 17.5 1 6.4

Heart, blood pressure, circulation 10 44 97.9

RTA 0 5 6.6

Numbers of Staff Absent

Table 4

14. Table 5 shows that there were fairly consistent numbers of staff who had no absence and
those that had absence over the course of last year which has continued into this year. In
both Q3 the number of employees who had sickness absence increased compared to
other quarters. Approximately two-thirds of staff had no absence.

Quarter Staff with no Staff with 7 days or | Staff with 8 days or
absence less more
1 2011/2012 71.2% (475) 23.7% (158) 5.1% (34)
2 2011/2012 73.3% (489) 22.8% (152) 3.9% (26)
3 2011/2012 66.6% (444) 29.5% (197) 3.9% (26)
1 2010/2011 71.4% (523) 24% (176) 4.6% (34)
2 2010/2011 73.7% (539) 22% (162) 4.3% (32)
3 2010/2011 65.2% (478) 29.9% (219) 4.9% (36)
4 2010/2011 66.8% (490) 28.9% (212) 4.3% (31)

Resource implications:

N/A

Legal and Governance Implications

N/A

Table 5

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications

N/A

Consultation Undertaken

None

Background Papers

Finance and Performance Scrutiny Panel - Sickness Absence Reports for 9 September 2010,
10 March 2011, 21 June 2011, 20 September 2011 and 15 November 2011.

Risk Management

Failure to manage sickness absence results in loss productivity and if it is significantly high

Page 18




could adversely affect the reputation of the authority.
Equality and Diversity

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for relevance to the
Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially adverse equality implications?

No

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment process, has a
formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

N/A
What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?

N/A

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



12 ebed

Appendix 1

EFDC

P & ED

DCE

Chief Exec

Housing

E & SS

F&ICT

CSS

Sickness Absence All Directorates 2010-12

i %311/12 1.87
12,1,
413/611 2.01
Q3 10/11, 2.15

Q1 10/11, 1.88

SE R T A AT AT = T = e AT s N e R
an bl 1 an R f T ek e A 2 Faeld f oy T ppe it i shraeld oy E=o kX
L Rl e A LT FT b T I F A S LA T 3 11/12 1.6
e e T iyl raeld Foay e T Pty shescld Pl Ea R Pl ot b
’
< 101, 115
0/11, 1.07
A LE T T AT A T = e AT e o R
a Bl 1 an R § T sk e & Faeld f oy T Pt i whra=ld Fouy E=s e

Q3 10/11, 2.35

JQ3 11/12 2.34

1Q3 10/11, 2.12

Q1 1112, 2.74

@Q311/12
EQ211/12
mQ111/12
m Q4 10/11
@ Q3 10/11
B Q2 10/11
0 Q1 10/11

jQ1 10/11, 3.11

Q1 1011, 1.15

1112 1.1
Q131/12 1. 3

11112, 1.79

Q3 10/11, 1.73

14/12, 2.12
Q4 10/11,2.18
Q3 10/11, 2.29

JQ1 10/11, 2.06

e . T AT e TN e e F g e o e e Q3 11/12 1.94
T T § e Tt ety i ot I P ] el s It s P

Q1 11/12, 1.83

Q4 10/11, 2.05
JQ3 10/11, 2.72
Z 10T, 2. 17
= THY = S e ] e e Ty o R e o e e e Wy 153
e s SR T Pt e e e el I g elrald o i s ke Q2 11/12 1.75
Q4 10/11, 2.78
/11, 1.71°
110/11, 1.7

e T TR AT e o e T e e s RPN P e s e e R o e el Q3 11/12 2.71
e PR T Fpreat ol I P ] Tt Pt e e Pt It




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



£z ebed

Appendix 2

Sickness Absence by Duration Q1 - Q3 2011/12

P & ED Q3 51.7% Iy | A 20.7% ———1 Average No. Days: 1.60

P & ED Q2 50.6% I /e 22.8% 1 Average No. Days: 1.75

P&EDQ1 50.6% Iy £ /e 21.5% ———— Average No. Days: 2.74

Housing Q3 38.9% I /e 31.4% ———————1 Average No. Days: 1.94

Housing Q2 28.7% I | 7. v/ 51.9% ] Average No. Days: 1.52

Housing Q1 41.9% | A/ 29.9% ——————1 Average No. Days: 1.83

F&ICT Q3 31.9% H— -/ 42.8% I Average No. Days: 2.71

F&ICT Q2 41.0% I 7 |/ S 37.7% 1 Average No. Days: 1.79

F&ICT Q1 29.9Y%, I - 7 & e 30.7% ——————— Average No. Days: 1.79

EFDC Q3 27.1% I 7. V. \// S 48.6% ) Average No. Days: 1.87

EFDC Q2 43.6% I | N /S 37.1% ] Average No. Days: 1.64

EFDC Q1 25.9% I ¥ 7.\ S 46.7% ] Average No. Days: 1.86

E & SS Q3 21.3% I |- A/ 63.6% ] Average No. Days: 1.53

E & SS Q2 50.6% I ., 28.0% ——————— Average No. Days: 1.75

E&SSQ1 21.0% I 62.1% ) Average No. Days: 1.23

DCEQ3 56.7% I, | 24.4% ————— Average No. Days: 1.71

DCE Q2 56.8% I 43.2% ) Average No. Days: 2.12

DCEM 51.8% I i 28,9% ——————— Average No. Days: 2.21

CSs Q3 41.1% I A S 26.9% ——————1 Average No. Days: 1.13

CSS Q2 55.5% Iy /e 23.9% 1 Average No. Days: 1.08

CSS Q1 50.0%, I 7 /e 21.6% 1 Average No. Days: 2.18

Chief Exec Q3 70.1% I T 47/ 23.2% ] Average No. Days: 2.34

Chief Exec Q2 80.8% I N 19.2% ——— Average No. Days: 1.93

Chief Exec Q1 | B 53,6/ E 7 —— 21.8% ———] Average No. Days: 1.47
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 120%

B4 Weeks + B8 Days + Oless than 8 days




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Agenda ltem 7

Report to the Finance & Performance
Management Scrutiny Panel

Date of meeting: 20 March 2012 SC RU_H NY

Portfolio: Finance & Economic Development Epping Forest District Council

Subject: Quarterly Financial Monitoring
Officer contact for further information: Peter Maddock (01992 - 56 4602).

Democratic Services Officer: Adrian Hendry (01992 — 56 4246)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

That the Panel note the revenue and capital financial monitoring report for the
Third quarter of 2011/12.

Executive Summary

The report provides a comparison between the original estimate for the period ended 31
December 2011 and the actual expenditure or income as applicable.

Reasons for proposed decision

To note the Third quarter financial monitoring report for 2011/12.
Other options for action

No other options available.

Report:

1. The Panel has within its terms of reference to consider financial monitoring reports on
key areas of income and expenditure. This is the third quarterly report for 2011/12 and
covers the period from 1 April 2011 to 31 December 2011. The reports are presented
based on which directorate is responsible for delivering the services to which the
budgets relate.

2. The first two reports compared the actual expenditure to date to the Original Estimate.
Comparisons in this report are to the Probable Outturn figures which have been
generated during the 2012/13 budget setting process. The Original Estimate expected
£171,000 to be taken from General Fund balances to balance the budget however the
probable outturn is expected to add £69,000 to General Fund balances this is a
movement of £240,000.

3. Salaries monitoring data is presented as well as it represents a large proportion of the
authorities expenditure and is an area where historically large under spends have
been seen.

Revenue Budgets (Annex 1 - 9)

4. Comments are provided on the monitoring schedules but a few points are highlighted
here as they are of particular significance. The salaries schedule (Annex 1) shows an
underspend of £110,000 or 0.8%. This compares to 2.0% at this time last year. More

Page 25



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

than half of this however relates to the Housing Revenue Account.

Expenditure on salaries at month 9 is £259,000 lower than at this point in 2010/11.
This is no doubt due at least in part to the restrictions placed on recruitment and
indeed the expected salaries expenditure figure had been revised to £14.209m some
£443,000 lower than the figure of £14.652m in the previous year in recognition of the
aforementioned restrictions. This accounts for much of the move from a deficit on the
in year General Fund net expenditure to a small surplus.

Investment interest levels in 2011/12 are roughly in line with expectations at quarter 3.
Interest rates are still extremely low and with the potential need to have cash available
for the Payment to the DCLG for Housing Self Financing, much is lent out short term.
Whilst investment income to date is in line it does look as if the final figure could now
fall short of the updated budget by as much as £30,000.

. The Council has received a little over £1.622m (64.9%) of the original £2.5m

investment placed with Heritable Bank as at 31 December 2011, however a further
payment in January has brought this figure up to £1.705m (68.2%). Current indications
are still that the Council will receive between 86 and 90% of the original investment
back however the final amounts will not be received until toward the end of 2012/13 at
the earliest.

Building Control Income is generally on track when compared to the budget but is
slightly down on the previous year. Income for the year may fall slightly short of the
updated figure however the ring fenced account is looking quite healthy and is
expected to return a surplus due to expenditure being lower.

Development Control income is above expectations, there have been some significant
fees relating to glasshouses and this has been treated as one off income in the
probable outturn. Having said that Income in December was quite low and both
January and February were also low. In order to reach the target income of around
£70,000 would be required in March. This does not look at all likely and a figure of
nearer £30,000 is expected meaning a shortfall of around £40,000.

Hackney Carriage licensing income is slightly above expectations but down slightly on
last years actual to date. However there have recently been a number of refunds of
licence plates and the number of registered vehicles is falling. If this trend continues at
the current rate the budgeted income levels will not be met and will obviously affect
income going forward into 2012/13. Other licensing income is in line with expectations
but down on the prior year. Having said that January was a good month and by the
end of February the actual figure had exceeded the full year budget.

Income from MOT'’s carried out by Fleet Operations has been revised downwards due
to the withdrawal of a local dealer. It now looks as if income will fall short of this
revised level though. The issue surrounding Hackney licence plates highlighted above
is also likely to have an effect on fleet operations income going forward as the vehicle
inspections are carried out by the Council.

Introduction of the Local Land Charges (Amendment) Rules 2010, has led to a
reduction in income levels compared to previous years and there is currently
uncertainty regarding the ability to charge for certain types of land charge search.
Having said that income levels were revised upwards in the probable outturn and
indications suggest that this level may well now be exceeded.

The Housing Repairs Fund shows an underspend of £355,000. Expenditure does tend
to be higher in the final quarter but even taking that into account an underspend looks
likely.

Payments to the Waste Management and Leisure Management contractor are in line

Page 26



with expectations and variances are minimal. The payments to the Leisure
Management contractor tend to be made in the month following service delivery
whereas payments to the Waste Management contractor are generally a further month
behind.

15. The financial year will shortly be coming to an end and whilst there will undoubtedly be
some variations to budgets overall net expenditure will be lower than the original and
quite possibly lower than the probable outturn.

Capital Budgets (Annex 10 - 16)

16. Tables for capital expenditure monitoring purposes (annex 10 -16) are included for the
nine months to 31 December. There is a brief commentary on each item highlighting
the scheme progress.

17. The full year budget for comparison purposes is the updated budget that is within the
recently approved Capital Strategy.

Major Capital Schemes
18. The Limes Farm Hall Development started at the end of the previous financial year.
The development has now been completed and opened to the public on 6 February.
Annex 17 gives some detail around the development.
Conclusion
19. The budgets for 2011/12 have now been updated and the overall position is better
than expected. When comparing against the probable outturn there may be some

shortfall in income but some expenditure underspends also look likely.

20. The panel is asked to note the position on both revenue and capital budgets as at
Month 9.

Consultations Undertaken

This report has been circulated to Portfolio-holders. An oral update will be provided to cover
any additional comments or information received from Portfolio-holders.

Resource Implications

The probable outturn suggests that the final position on the General Fund will add an amount
to balances rather than use an amount from balances therefore the position should be better
than originally expected. There is concern around Hackney Carriage Licence and MOT
income but salary and other expenditure savings are likely to offset this. There is no reason
at this stage to assume that the Probable Outturn will not be met.

Legal and Governance Implications

Reporting on variances between budgets and actual spend is recognised as good practice
and is a key element of the Council’'s Governance Framework.

Safer, Cleaner, Greener Implications
The Council’s budgets contain spending in relation to this initiative.
Background Papers

Various budget variance working papers held in Accountancy.

Page 27



Impact Assessments

Risk Management

These reports are a key part in managing the financial risks faced by the Council. In the
current climate the level of risk is increasing. Prompt reporting and the subsequent
preparation of action plans in Cabinet reports should help mitigate these risks.

Equality and Diversity:

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’'s general equality duties, reveal any potentially

adverse equality implications?

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment No
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?
None

How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been
addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group?
N/A

Page 28



139dnd WOy

L XINNV

0¢

8¢l-

G-
4o
-
9'0-
L'l
00

%
(d3siAgd)

NOILVIRIVA

Z59'vl 85¢'yl 8°0- 602'vL
61 0Ll 90 19l
go0v'L L9g') i v8z'L
565'C 188'2 90 ev5'e
ze0'y 568'¢ 0z 1z8'c
006'2 598'z £0- 096'Z
168'L 6.8'L 0 0481
201’} lzL't 0 ¥80'L
42" 44 z0 08¥
0003 0003 % 0003
{@3SIATY) (33SIAZY] [CEERERY
NOISIAO¥d 0LZiiig oL 135ang Woyd NOISIAOYd
139ang SUNLIAGNTdX3 NOLLYIMVA 139ang
1iioroz Zinvoz

SANVIVS - 1102 ¥38W303a

‘ainyipuadxe salle|es ay} ul papnjoul ale s3s0d Aouaby .

660'vL

091

0L2'L
8es'c
1G2'¢
256'C
L18°L
080°}
13514

0003

LLZL/Le Ol

FANLIANIdXT

SAIVIVS - ONIHJOLINOW TVIONVNIH F1vd0103dIa

Iviol

JO¥LINOD ONIATINg

(1013u09 Buipjing sse)
31VH0.L03¥Ia LINIWJOTIAZA DINONOO3 8 ONINNY1d

» 31VH0L03¥HId INJOS 13341S ® LNIFIWNOAUIANST
» 3LVH0.LO3HIA ONISNOH

31Vy0L03dIad 101 '@ 3ONVNI4

JLVHO0LO3¥IA IOIAYIS LH0ddNS LVHOdH0D

» AAILNO3X3 43IHD ALNd3a

JAILNO3X3 431HO FHL 4O 301440

JLVHO0LO3NIa

Page 29



"1800100 pue judy
ul sjuswijelsul %06 Ul Aljead aoimy pred aie yolym
43VA pue gyD 8y} 0} sjuelb epnjoul sainby sy

‘sieak
snoinald yum suosuedwiod aew o} aeudoiddeu
alojeley} s! )| suoneoldde iebiej 1o} pejejdwiod
s yiom se sjuewhed oabeys ur 10 ‘psfoid sy}
Jo uone|dwod uo no pied ae sjuels) "HeysswoH
0} Jno pled usaq osje sey (0GG'/F Jo uelb
ay 1o pied usaq sey 00Z'SH3 UdIUM JO 0ZG€L3
0} junowe sisuenb eaiy} isiy 8y} ul panoidde
sjuelS) "¢ Japeny Jo pud ay} Je Bujpuelsino |jis s!
012'623 Yolym jO0 ‘00Z'9G3F O} Junowe papiuiod
se sieaA snoineid wolj pJemio} pallied sjueio

Sjuswiwio)

0ge

0¢ce

9¢g¢

S0¢€

€51

LL

€51

LL

€gl

€8

191

8¢l

%

000.3

000.3

000.3

000.3

000.3

|enjoy A }ebpng
aoueleA
471

[enoy
L1/0)

[enjoy
[4713’

1ebpng
ZLLL

Ja1enpd pAyL

1ebpng
JesA |In4
493!

yoddng Jojoag Aiejunjop

sdnoi) AlejunjoA 0} SjuelD

"SWwio)l ainipuadxa Jole

¢ X3aNNV

FATIND3XT J31HO JHL 4O J01440 - ONTHOIINOW TVIONVNIF FIVdOL103Id 21/l 10¢

Page 30



‘pouiad aaieiedwod sy} ul Ajuoud uaye} pey
syoeloid jenden se Jesh snoaid auy ueyl Jeybiy
si Japenb pJaiyy ey Jo} ainyipusdx3 ‘ieuenb jeuly
oy} ui Buunooo ainjipuadxa o oG AljealdAl yim
‘sieak @auy) snoiaald sy Joj uisped ainjipuadxs
ay) uo peseq usaq sey Buyyoud jebpng eyl

SUETITo)

aoueusjuiep Buipjing

Lyl Gol 0Sl Lee
0l Gl yA4" g9l 0S1 L€€
% 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
|enioy A 1obpng |enjoy [enjy 196png 196png
souelleA 110} 491" cLLl lesA [Ind
471" Jespenp piyL 4711

"SWwiSll 2INyipusdxa JOlej

¢ XINNV STOIAGAS 1d0ddNS JLvVd0dd09 - ONIFOIINOW TVIONVNIS 31VdO 10341 ¢/l 1oc

Page 31



‘uonoe siy} Buipuajep ul seiLoyINe Jo Jaquinu
e JO jjeyaq uo Bujjoe si UOIBID0SSY JUBWUISACD
[eoo] eyl ‘pied ses; wiepal 0} jdwele
ue u sBuipsesoid PNod panssi aney saiueduwiood
yoseas eojeaud Bwosg "000'6eF Ajerewixoidde
JO SSO| awooul [enuue ue uj Buinsas sayoiess
jeuosied oy obieyo ayy Buponss iesh sg|
penss| uonoalip JuaWuIanob 8y} Jesyo o) padjay
sey siy] ‘ewoou] sefieyd pue| Ul 8se8IOUl
ue 0} ps] sey yoym Jeak }se| Jano 1eyieul
Buisnoy sy} ul Juswanoldwl ue usaq sey aiayL

‘uinyino ejqeqold auy uj pejosjjal si siy}
‘diysiejesp |eoo] & woyy ssauisng jo uoipodold
ueoyiubls B Jo ssO| 8y} Jo }nsas oy} sI Jeak
snoinaid ay) o} pesedwod ¢ Jepenb ui awooul
ur uoponpal 8yl ‘jodep peoy uolsbueT je yun
suoneladQ 199]4 8y} Aq usyepepun aie sjOWN

"JUBISUOD paulewal sey
22Ue9I7 JO sadA} JByjo WOl sWodU| "Jeak Jualind
ay} Ul aseasoul ay} jo Aulofew ayy o} Buiunoooe
sosuedl| sasiwaid 10} S8ONjOU [EMaUS] Yim ‘Jeak
snoinald sy} 0} paledwiod awoouUl 88} JO S|OAJ)
paseaioul usas sey gL/} 10z jo Jepenb piyy eyl

"aWooul Uo joedw Juesyiubls
e pey jou ing ‘Apyblis peonpsas sey sisal auyl
JO UONONPOIUI Y} 80Uls paAledel suoleoljdde jo
Jaquinu 8y 's}sa| obpajmouy| J8AL(J 10} 8WOdUI
apnjoul Mou sjenjoe ey} pue ‘pouad eajeledwod
ay) 0] paiedwoo us|je} Sey ¢ JOHEeNy J0j Sa0Ua||
3J0IUSA pue IaALIp Joj suojjeoljdde jo Jequinu 8yl

SUEele)

Le

9l

cl

719

909

G.S

9.

6El

€e¢

68

€al

Lyl

0ce

€6

145

vl

Lec

LL

yel

081

0o¢

€01

611

%

000.3

000.3

000.3

000.3

000.3

|enjoy A jJabpng
ooueleA
cL/LL

[enjy
LL/OL

fenoy
ZULL

jebpng
493"

1eUEND PAIYL

Jebpng
1BoA |IN4
ZLLL

sabley) pue] [eooT

S OW suopeladQ 199]4

suonelisifey g Buisusdl

sobeuien AsusoeH

Swa)] awWooul Joley

qe xauuy

STDIAYTS L1J0ddNS J1Lvd0dd00 - ONTJOIINOW TVIONVNIF 3IVHOLO03dId ¢l/110¢

Page 32



‘pajedBA U9ag MOU SABY UdIym Jodsp peoy
uojsbBue je sjun JO |ejusl Joj SDIAISS S|9BUM
uo sjesw SYAM 8Uu} 10} GB9'LPF JO swodul
sepnjoul |enyoe sieaA snoeid Byl ‘€1/2L02
jo ued jeyur sy} Buunp paaeodal jng ‘iesh
83U} Jo pus 8y} Je Joj psjunoode 8q [IIm Z1/110¢
01 Buiejal 8WooU| "J9A0UIN} JI8U} UO PasSEq a4usd
pAo|7 plIABQ 8U} W04} PBAISJa) S| UOISSILIWOD

"Jepenb |euly ay) Jo} 8oueApE Ul Pa|jig Siual
sepnoul pue ‘}ebie} uo si awoouj ‘sasnoy oljgnd
pue uonejs |oljed e ‘sdoys aie s}esse a8yl 102
yoley € UO WHH Oyl woly palisjsuel) sism
yolym sjasse Buisnoy uou 0} sajejas swooul Siy L

"000'¥£3 Bulj[elo} SmMainal jusl pajep 3oeq
woJj Bunnsas sieaile sapnjoul SWOdUl SB UIN)no
sjgeqoid 8y} jo pesye ase ‘peoy uolsbueT
pue syun doysyIop) fiiH PoomyeQ ‘liiH poomyeQ
‘peOoY J8Y00lg }B SHUN |elISNpU| Sy} WOl sjusy

STENIek)

Lvl'e $S.'C G0.L'C ¥¥8'C
Gl 8 L0l 09 4] 961
0 € 08.') €8.'1 08L'l 08.°}L
¥ 8¢ 998 116 €8 806
% 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
|enioy A 1ebpng jenjoy jenoy 19bpng 19bpng
aouele/ L1/0} 4711 4711 JBBA |Ind

4212

Japenp paiyL

[421%

(a]
Apedoid g pueQD

()
()
Q)

al

sdoyg - sesiwelid ssauisng

soje)s [eusnpu;

"SWIS) swooul J0le

o¢ Xauuy

STDIAYTS Ld0ddNS JIvI0dd00 - ONIJOLINOW TVIONVNIA F1vd010ddId ¢l/1 102



“Jeaf snoineud
8y} jo Jspenb piyy sy} pue 3ebpng puiysq
Ajybis ale ‘siesh @aiy) snoinald sy} jo abelene
8y} uo peyoid ale yoym ‘sasy |0Jiuod Buipjing

‘€1/210g Ijun juswellied
Ag pessed agq o} Ayiun si sesy uopjedldde
ur  eseasoul psasodoid  SJUBWUIONOD  BY]
‘lellenb sl ay) ul paAl@oas Buieq sesnoysse|d
Jjo} suoneoydde jueoyubis ealiy} Jjo  jnsal
e se sjenioe sieak snoineid ay) pue jobpng oy}
Ujog pepesdxa Sey awodul [0Jjuod juswdopas(g

‘2inbl uinpno
a|geqoid sy} ul pejosjjel sI pue ‘ysesaloy) |euiblio
8y} ueyy semo| Ajueoyubls si zi/L10g Ul dJom
sy} puny o) pasnbas 19bpng syl ‘Jeuenb jeuy
ay] ul peoadxe ainyipuadxs jo Auolew sy} yum
‘SIY} ®ABIYOR 0} PBUOISSILLLIOD Udag aABY SalIpn)s
JO Jaquinu e ‘ueld |Bo0T mau e jo uoljeledeud
ay) spiemo) Janenb pliyy ayy ul unbaqg sey MJOAA

SUEe}

Ll 66. G8. 080°L
L- v- 66¢ 96¢ 0oy 8¢S
S 8l €LE 140)7 Gg8¢e ¢SS
89 ,C 0¢ 891
0L- & 89 LC 0¢ 891
% 0003 000.3 0003 0003 000.3
[enoy A Jobpng [enjoy [enjoy 19bpng 18bpng
SouBLIEA L1/0) 4711 471" 1B3A |INd
471" Jajenp pliyL [4%13"

Buluieg es4 josuo) Buipjing

<
™

[eJ}1¥]elg) EmEan@
©

SWENEV R ©: T]

Buluueld plemio

Swia)l ainjipuadxa Joley

INTINJOTIATA OJINONODT ® ONINNVTd - ONTJOLINOW TVIONVYNI4 31VHO103dIad ¢1/110¢

7 XaNNV




Sy L6V 00¢ 299

"sajel aAladw oo
Je Jeak 1se| 8yl JI9A0 opew  SJusWisaAul
JO Jequinu B 0} sajeal  sieshk  usemiag

oseaJoul ayl Jeak 8y} Joj saoueen ofew ON |}- c- S /6% 00§ /99 aLO0oU| JUBWISBAU|

"SWiayl awodUl JoTey

900} 968 ¥v6 8/L'L

K]

"Jnoy} Japenb ul sjqehed Buiwoosq ™

Jepenb paiyy ey} Joj 99} Byl yum ‘994 pny )

siapenb om) ayy syuesaidal ejep 0} ainjpusdx3y |0 0 €0l Gll Gl YANA sabiey) ypny v_@

o
‘'saseyo.nd juswdinbs mau uj uofonpal e
pue sab.ieyd |jeo Jamo| ‘Buljjiq ale| Jo uoljeulquIoD
e 0} onp Jesk lJoud sy} pue 3}8bpng mojaq

si Jepenb payy 8y ul ssuoydaje} uo ainjipuadxy  |9- o Lyl rd ocl 061 sauoydaje L
‘uinyno ajgeqoud ay} uj pajosjal
si joBpng Ul uoponpal 8y Jeak sy} ul sbuines
paonpoid oABY UOIYym ‘SIOBJJUOD  SduBUSIUIRW
Jo Jequinu e jo uopenoBsuas 8y} wol
Bupnsal Buines e s)osjjal |enjoe sieak snoiaald

8y} pue 18bpng o} paiedwos ainypusdxs oyl |9- oy~ 29/ 659 669 1G/ ABojouyoa | uolewlioju]

SWiay aInyipuadxa Iolep

% 0003 000.3 000.3 0003 000.3
|[enoy A Jobpng [enjoy jenjoy 19bpng 196png
SoUBLIEA L1/0) 4713 471" JesA [Ind
SJUsWWOy 471" Jauenp pJiyL 14711

ID1® JONVNIZ - ONIHOLINOW TVIONVNIA 1Vd0103dIa ¢l/h10¢
G XaANNV




‘Buisie seoueleA Jofew oN  |g- z- 0¥ fole Iole ¢/ wnasn
"SI} 2Injipuscxa Jolel
% 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
[enjoy A Jebpng [enoy [enoy 19bpng 189bpng
aduellep L1L/0L [471%" [47131 JeaA |ind
SJUsWIWO) 4711 Jauenp pdiyL 471"

9 X3INNY TAILNOTXT 3THO AINd3d - DNTHOLINOW TVIONVNId F1Vd0L03dIa ¢l/l10¢

Page 36



Page 37

'LIES) UojUBARId SSeUSSBIBUIOY | £z- Ly ge 95 3] UOIEPOWWOD0Y Isepjeaig g pag
sjounoy eyl  Ag  pom  eajoeoid  poob
Ag ‘isepjesig % peg ojul juswedeld uj esesioul SWETETRMBOEN
payiew e uses BulAey X8ss3 Ul S|1oUN0Y JBYI0 JO . C
Jagquinu e aydsap ‘s|aAs| Mo| aAs]yoe 0} pabeuew
sey [Iouno) Y] '}osal Jse| B Se $Sajawoy 8y} 0} |€G- Ge- €9 L 99 98 UOIIBPOLLLLIODDY JSepealg 9 pag
pajeso|e Ajuo S| UOI}BPOWIWOooE. Jsepealg ¥ pag
Stua) aJmipuadxa Jolepy
% 0003 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
[enjoy A 1ebpng [enjoy |enjoy 19bpng 196png
aouele/ L1/0lL 4717} ZL/LL JeaA |Ind
SUENe) 47125 Jspenp paiyL [4911"

dNNd TVY3INTIO ONISNOH - OSNTJOLINOW TVIONVYNIH F1IVHOL103dId ¢l/110¢

L XANNY



eg Xouuy

‘pus Jeak sy} Je pusdslepun jjews e
0} pes| A|gissod pinoo yoiym ‘pueT] psjeuluueiuo)
uo pusesdiepun ue  Ajuaund S| aleyl

‘pus Jeak ay} Aq Juads

aq 0} payoadxs si 1ebpng ay) ‘Buiob-uo Apuslino
aje UOIUM ‘SHIOM SoueUSIUlEW O} S8jelat SIyj

"sgoueleA Jofew ou e aisy].

‘K|@y1] $)00| puadsispun
Joulw e ng dn yoyeo oy Buiuuibaq si ainjpuadxy
‘Ales joeiju0o 8y} Buijeuiuis) 10joeljuod a8y} 0}
anp ||Npayos pulyeq si suig JapiT Jo Juswaoe|dal
pue soleld oWeN 985S JO  SduBUSUIBI

ssouBLIBA Jofeuwl ou aie alay]
"Se0URLIBA JOfeW Ou aJe aiay]

‘pue Jesk sy} Aq Juads aq 0} pejosloid
sI }l alaym Kuolgnd 0} ajejal oouelBA Ujew 8yl

STEWe)

pue pajeulweiuo)
9 abeujeliq pue’]

ajjua) plesp\ YHON
Bunjied }@84S up

Bupied 19848 HO

pun |esauan) sAemybiH
Buijohoay

Buisues|D 19848

uoN23|j0D) asnjay

vel'y 926'y ¥G0'G 6118
0c- vi- 9¢€ 1] 69 1442
Gl- e 8¢l 43 el 8e¢
b- v- gec 162 S6¢ Ly
- v~ 9ce 0s¢e 14515 LYy
ov- 8y~ 0l A 0cl 9G¢
0 b- €Le'e eeY'e YEY'C L0L'e
b= 8- 88. G08 €8 6YE’l
gF le- 8. 66. 928 L0V°L
% 000.3 000.3 000,3 000.3 000.3
|enjoy A 1obpng [enjoy |enjoy 18bpng 19bpng
SouBlBA L1/0} 4711 47123 JBBA [INd
47135 Japenp paiyL 147121

"SWa} ainypuadxa Jofej

Page 38



qg Xauuy

‘(Aenuer)
0l YJUOJ Ul P82IOAU] pue pauoioe useq Mou
sey siy jo Ajuofew ey ‘paaibe aq 0} seses| Mau
Buiyeme sjueus) 0} eNp UMOP SI BWODUI |BJueY

‘pereoadxe uay} Jaybiy s| swoou| }9X0l} UOSEDS

“Jeak Joud ayy ui
paAi@oal Jey} Ueuy} Jamo| Si WNNQ 8jqeqold 8y}
YIm aulj Ul Isfiym awoou) abieyd Ayeusd JeAsmoH
‘pejseoalo) ueyy Jaybly st swooul Aejdsip pue Aed

"8UIooU}
pejoadxe ueyy Jeybly ur Bupnsss ssbeuucy
BulppAoas Ul @sealdul %G'e B uU9eq sey syl

‘'s@ouelleA Jofew ON

S90UELIeA Jofew ON

‘a)jusn 8y} abeuew o} ioUnoy sy}
sAed 10joB13U0D By} JBY} SI JNSal Jeu 8y | 'aiusd
oy} ur BupseAul [PUNOY 8y} O} 8Np Z}/LL0T
Bulnp pejeiobsu-as sem Yoym asj Juswebeuew
8y} O} sejejel ‘sleak usemiaq edusieylp 8yl

STUENeTe}

pyL'e 1689'¢ 0eL'e 82s's
oL~ Lgh- LoL'} 9kL'L i g 98y'l
4 6 1444 T4 LIy 0.9
€ or4 182 60L 989 yv0'L
4 9s oLl 96¢'L ove'l 0S€'C
0 0 [44 0S 0S 8L
909 S.S 9.8 116
0 0 €9l 691 691 06¢
0 0 9s¢ 892 892 65V
L= - 0LL 8.1 6.1 $0€
0 0 Ll ov- ob- 9.-
% 000.3 000.3 0003 000.3 000.3
lenjoy A 1obpng jenoy |enjoy 1ebpng 19bpng
aouelep L1I0L 47113 42123 JBBA |INd
47123 Jayenp piyL 47133

81Uy plesp\ YHON

Bunied 19aiis uQ

Bupired 19941S 4O

Bulohoay

U01}08]|00) 8snjey

asue) spods JebuQ

|0od Aeqay weyiem

anue) spodg Buiddy

auju9) 8insie] uoybnoT

BULOTIUO} 1500 JoB;jUu0D)

INTOS TITd1S ANV INTJANOEIANT - ONTJO LINOW TVIONVNI4 FIVdOL0d4dId ¢/l 10c

Page 39



€066l v11°02 08.°02 vEY 8C

R4
|lldy Wolj 9%z / Jo syual Buljjemp uj 8sesaiou] sy} 0} selejal

sieah useamiaq souelleA 8yl “Jeak ul aoueleA Jofew ON |0 c- 7£Z'61 9z1'02 62102 e WA ey Bulemg ssolo

“1eak 8y} UIyIM saouelieA Jofew ou ale &isyl |0 c- 699 89 1G9 068 sjuay Buljjemg-uoN

"Swis)l swodur Joej\

[4454 666'¢ 8/S'y GEY'O

“Jeak ay}
10 pus ay} Aq juads aq [m ainjpuadxe aleym ‘soueusiulew
Jun pealenjeys o) seje@l eale Jaylo 8yl pus Jesk
8y} 1e puadsiepun ue ag 0} Aj@yl| SI 818y} aieym Bunybi

pue BuijesH eJe puadsiepun ue Buimoys seaie ujew 8yl |Le- 6%71- G0E g¢e /8% 99 $90IMI8G |e1oads
‘pus Jeah sy}
Aq juads aq 0) Ajoyl| ale seale asay} aieym ‘Bujoiaies seb
pue ‘DAdN ‘suoieloosp [eussixe aie spuadsiepun lojjews
Buimoys seale JaylQ "palinbal g [|IM SPIOA USYM UMmouNun
s1 )l se ‘Jeak 8y} ssoioe Ajusne pajijoid si 1ebpng 8yl ‘puny

slledas 8y} JO BBlE PIOA BU} O} S8)ejds SOUBLIEA UjeW 8yl |6~ GGe- 769'c 125’ Z288'c 697'S slleday Buisnoy
‘pus 1eah sy} Ag Juads oq {jim
SIU] Jeyl peajedonue si ) ‘S}s00 Jeindwlod pue sjue}nsuoo

‘soe} |euoissejoid 0] S8l sedueleA  ulew 8yl [9¢- G/- ¢zl el 602 20¢ jejauasn) ¥ Juswabeuep

"SW9)] oInypuadxa JOE

% 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
|enjoy A }obpng |jenoy |lenoy Jobpng 19b6png
douellep L1/0L 4713 4915 JedA |Ind
sjuswiuwlo) [471%5 Japenp paylL 4717

6 XINNV

INNOD3V INNIATY ONISNOH - ODNTJOLINONW TVIONVNIH J1VHO103dId ¢1/110¢

Page 40



"108lo0ud Juswdojanspay
peoy uojsBue oy} uo syiom Ayjiqises; Joj 000'vS3
pue aue selhd ul puel jo duis e jo aseyoind 8y} o}
000°123 Jo 19Bpng e ‘sjse| [O Bupjenspun o} Ayoeded
ay) esealtoul 0} juswdinba Alejioue pue i S|OIYsA mau
e jo aseyaind ayy Jo} 000‘vZF o 19bpng e sepnjoul siyl

‘Renuns jeinyonuys e Buipuad
passe.lboid usaq jou sey |00d Buiwwimg Aeqay Weyiepn
18 JooJ }ej} 8y} U0 MIOM ‘IanemoH ‘pajedionue st Buiaes
jlews e ‘z1L0z yoiel L Ag paysiuly 8q 0} pajoadxe pue |jom
Buissaiboid s asiuan spodg Buiddg je joos 8y} Uo YIOAA

‘pajedionjue si Buines
|lews & pue ‘passadoid usag aduls 8ABY Yoiym ‘lequiedeq
JO pue 8y} je sjuswAed Bulpuelsino swos 8iem aisy]
‘sablan sselb ay) 0} sjuswanoidwi pue ‘seale Bupjied pue
pJek ieal sy} 0} oeWIE} MaU ‘punodwiod uig mau e Buipiaold
9)o|dWoD MOU S| Spuepiied }e MIOM [BjusWwuoiiAuS 8y]

"pJeMIO} palLIeD aq 0} pajoadxs
Sl 000'693 Ajejewixoidde ‘aeah xau ojul dijs ||Im INg pauels
usaqg aAey sewayos Buiulewas sy} jo Jso|y Jeak |eloueuly
Mau 8y} ul AJes lo pue-ieah sy} Aq pejejdwiod aq 0}
186.e} uo pue |jlem Buissaiboid ale juswdinba Buiyseule ||ej
ey} pue sjosuod Aousioyje ABieus ‘welsAs Bunybil meu ay)
JO Uoijejjelsul eyl "pejejdwod usaq |je aAeYy uolgInsul Jool
8y} Jo epelbdn sy pue sjun Buiuolipuod die sy} jo spelbdn
|y} ‘syl oM} JO juswysiginjel 8y} ‘sie|log ulew a8y} jo
1uswaoe|dal 8y Juels) paseqg ealy S JUSWUIOA0LD) 8y} Wolj
papun} Bulaq aie Yolym jo oM} ‘sswsyos Aousiolye Abisus
Buipnpoul ‘ewwelBold @ouBUSJUIB) pauuUB|d 8yl UIYlIM
S©21440 2IAID 8y} e uayeuapun Buieq sjosloid jje sienod siyl

Sjusuiwo)

cc

9i-

OlL-

8l-

Sl

851

9€S

142

8l

€6

144

€C

bLL

66

89

0¢

6EC

%

000.3

000.3

0003

000.3

[enjoy A yebpng

aoueleA
4212’

lenjoy
ZLLL

jebpng
AN

Jopenp palyL

Jebpng
Jes A |Ind
ZLLL

1ejol

sjuswisaAu] jeudeq Jsyio

2ouBUBIUIBY pauue|d 1810

ajesiadoo) ‘sdoyg spuepiied

SHIOM 83O DINID

0L XINNV - ONIHOLINOW TV1IdVO F1vd0103dId ¢l/110¢

Page 41



‘000°063 Ajo1ewixoidde
Jo ofeddiys aq [m a8y} Jeyl pslewnse usaq
sey Jl ‘pus-iesk ayy Agq Juads aqg o} pajoadxa s 196png
sy} jo Ajuolew sy} ybnoyyy ‘¢}/2L0zZ ul uons|dwiod
pajedioiue  Yum sleak om} Jano  paseyd uesq
aney sjosfold g Buiuiewal ay)y pue Jesk siy} psaysiul
aq 0} peadxe si ‘yosfoid uonnjos Buppom sjiqow
oy} ‘109oid aiow sUQ 2JBMYOS SB[} 3y} Jo aseyaind
pue ‘walshs Bundieoss yseod ayj jo uonejuswajdul
In}  ‘epesbdn 8OO  yseo  'sosUSDl|  BJeM}OoSs
10 aseyoind ‘sepelbdn dopysap jo aseyaind ‘Bujuspley
Aunoes  ‘ylom e uojeuwlojul jJo eseyd puoodss
‘1o0fold NVYAM eyi Buipnpur ‘iesh siyy peejdwiod
useq Apesse aney spsfoid g zi/LL0z Buunp
syoofoid jeydes D) ) UO uSEHBPUN US3( SBY MIOAA

SUEeke)

344 89¢ 8G¢
VA 0¢- 8ve 89¢ 8g¢
% 000.3 0003 0003 000.3
|enjoy A 196png |enjoy 1obpng 19bpng
aoueue/ 4713 [471%" JesA [Ind
4717 Jajeny pyL 4711

ejol

syo9foid 19

L1 X3NNY

- ONIYOLINOW TV1IdVO F1vyd0103dId ¢l/110¢

Page 42



‘€1/Z10Z O}l PIEMIO} PBLIIBD 8 0} PESU ||IM B}BWISS 8} JO ||8
10 aWos jey) ejaqissod si }i ‘iesh [ejoueUY SIY} Ul SWS)SAS mau 8y} jjelsul pue ainooid
0} epew Buieqg si Woye Alens ybBnouyyy ‘uswdinbs Buuojuow ALDD psjeioosse
pue swejshs Aljawsejs) Bujuiem pooly Bulisixe s|OUN0Y 8y} Jo juswede|dss 8y}
1o} Jaquisda( Ui jauiged Aq panoidde sem 0p0‘GZF 40 196png meu y "Buires 000'cF e
ul Jinsas Ajjusnbasuod |im pue Jeak siy} Jo uspLm ag o} Ajay| st Aljigel siyl JuswAed
uonesuadwos e jo joadsal Ui obe sieek Auew pesiel Joypalo Aipuns Bujobuo
ue Ag Ajpybis jesyo useq sey aiey umoys ainypuadxe jenjoe eyl ‘jusds useq
SBY UoIUM JO ||e ‘s8|oIysA @oueuLjulEW Spunoib 1oj 000‘6Z3F Jo 196png B sepnjoul siy L

“Jeok [eloueUl BU) JO PUS B} e plemio}
pelLed aq O} psau |IM 000'053 Alsjewixoidde jeyy pejedionue si )i Ing psjejdwiod
ueeq BABY SHIOM 8U} JO awWwog ‘siojeledo jexiew oy} yum pesibe Ajuiof useq sey
ploiLy PlespA ULON e N0 palied aq 0} syJom juswanoidwi jeyded jo ejnpayos vy

"MOJ|O} ||IM SMBIASI
uojybnoT pue [IiH Isinyyong sy} ‘paysiuy S| maiaal siyy souQ ‘Buiddg Joj €1/21.02
ul epise 18s 000'S.3F Ul JO 000'0Z3 Inode piemuos Buibuilg ejelssaoau |IIm siy)
‘000'063 Ajerewixoidde [ejo} 0} pejelwsa usaq sey Jeak jeioueul siy} jo pue ay) Aq
paje|dwod aq 0} Yiom Jo anjeA ey pue jjom Buissaiboid s} majnas Buppied Buiddg ey

“uoijes0jje SIU} 0 8sn Jseq 8y} uo Jodal Jayuny e Buipuad ¢1/Z1.0Z Ul apise 18s usaq
Sey 000°0E3 pue Jeak |edueul Sy} Ul syJom Buipuelsino uo juads usag sey 000‘€E3
alep 0] 010z Jeqwaldes ul Jauiqe) o} psejuasaid sem Jodal pue Junoode [eul) 8y}
pue a}ajdwiod aie 8}Is 8y} Je SHIOM UoleIpawal pue uoneloisal di| yuombBuiqgog oy L

‘palinbai a9 |jIm piemio} A11ed e pue Jesk
JeiouBUl XU pelisAljep 89 [|IM SIaulejuod au} jey} Ayl st 3l ‘pesijeul Buieq ||is s!
10BJ3U0D 8y} ‘ussoyo Jaljddns palisjaid e pue Jno palled useq Sey Sieulejuod 8y} o}
sseo0.d Juswainoold ayy yBnouyyy ‘sieureiuod Buljphosl pue sjsem mau jo aseyaind
8y} Joj Bulurewss wins ay} si Jobpng 000° L1 3 Bululewss syt ‘Wodey uininQ |ended
ay} ui plemio) Auieo oy pesodoid aq |im Yyoiym 000‘0L3 Jo puadsispun sy} pue o}
pled pue peisAljap Usaq aABY SB|0IYSA UBASS ||y Jeak siuy} sleyybial) asnjal paumo
-louNoD ussleUIU By} JO UaAes aoejdal 0} 000‘000°L3F JO 1ebpng e sepnjoul Siyl

"pue-leah au Je 000'#¥3 40 18pJo auy ul Buines
e ajeiauab im sy} 1ey) pejedionue elojalay) si ) ‘Jeah jse| pasies sioypaso Aipuns
Buipueisino ey uey} Jemo] Buieq anua) spodg Aaqay WEYIBAA 1 SHIom Alljigises)
8y} pue ejus) ainsid uoybnoT 8y} JO UOoISUBIX® 8y} jo Joadsal sjuswis|es
Jeuly oy} WoJ} paynsal oABY UDIUM SHpelo om} o} sajeas aunbly jenjoe aanebeu
sy "podai siy) Uc MOYsS Jou op Asy} aiojeiay} iz10z Aenuer uj epew aiem sjuswihed
oy} pue peseyoind usegq mou sey juswdinbe sy} |y 'saliua) ainsieT JebuQ
pue Buidd3 je juswdinbe sseujly mau 1o} si (000°Z613) 186pNg siy3 jo Auofew syl

SUE e}

Z8-

c0l}-

142

6¢li-

Sb-

861-

¥S6 oze'l

28s°L

T4 6¢

0 GG

€e 6¢

0¢c6 000'L

Y- 121

12°]

€L

L

6¢

34"

¥0c

%

000.3

000.3 000.3

000.3

|enjoy A }abpng

soueleA
42122

[enjoy 1ebpng
ZLLL 4911

Jayenp piyL

1ebpng
JBBA [INH
ZLLL

lejol

SHIOM [BJUSLUUOCIIAUT J8YIO

PISIHIY PIESA UHON

(Buiddg) smainay Bupiied

diL yuomBuigagog

EEIIEEN
9 Juswdinb3 juswabeuep s)sepn

SHION BJJUSD) ainsie

¢l XaNNY INTOS 13391S ANV INJWNOHIANT - ONTJOLINOW V1IdVO 31vd0.L03dId ¢/ 10¢

Page 43



JIoUN0D UMO| By}
pue D43 uesmjeq pasijeuly pue pasibe souo ‘pauueld
se ¢1/zL0Z Ul uayeuspun ag [m syefoud Buiurewsl
ay| ‘Jeak |eloueuly SIy} Ojul uopedoje sJesk jxau
40 000'¢13 piemioy Buibuig uesw [Im YoIYM 000'8S3
jo uoiBal ay} ul aq pejoadxe S| syoefoid essy) jo 1s00
pauiquioo 8y ‘Aeqqy WEUJEAA Ul BWSUD 8y} O} SHIoM
Juswiysigunial 8y} pue ‘||leH UMO] 9y} }e SedUsjusAuod
olignd By} 0} SHJOM JusWIYSIgInas 8y} :8}e|dwiod mou sie
syosfoid om] "Aeqqy WeYlBAA ‘plolsIspe) | jo joadsal
ur |pi7 Ag pred wnjweld 000'G9L3 By} Wwolj paoueul
8q |IIM ®Ajeniul 8y} jo 1SO00 |inj dYL “JlouUnoy Uumol
ay} Ag painoold pue psbeuew sjoefoid jo Jaqunu e jo
sesudwoo Aeqqy Weylep) je aAljeniu| uojeisusbay ay |

‘Buipuny jeuonippe
1senbas 0} Alesssoau ag osje Aew }I pue usyeuspun
8Q |IM S}S0O pojeWSe jJo uojenieas-al Y Hodey
uinpnQ |eude) sy jo Wed se piemio} Alleod oy pajsenbal
¢ ol0jalay} [IM S}SOD uoponisuod ey o} bBunejel
196pnq 8y} ‘e}e|dWod 0} S)aaMm g 8ye} [[IM pue Z10Z [idy
Ul Jeys 0} pejoadxa mou S| YJom uononisuo) ‘psuueld
SI 8UO JayuUNn} B pue usyeuspun usaq Apealje sey Aeains
jeuonippe auo ‘}senbal Jdyy 3y ‘Aousby JuswuosiAug 8y}
Aqg pesies senss| Buiuueld jo asnedsq pekejep uesq sey
Aaqqy WeyyepA 18 yojd Hinjodisy Mau 8y} Jo uoionisuo)

‘9|Npayos saLWByos Jofew UO SUSWILOD 885

"80UBIUBAUOD JBWIO0ISND
1o} doys dojs suo B Ojul 92JAISS JO SEale snollen Jayjebo)
Wbnoiq sey 3| ‘zLoz Aenuep jo pus a8y} je pajs|dwiod
SEM puB | |0z Jagquiada(] Ul PasUsWWod ||leH Ww.ie sawl
1e eale uolidesal Jawoisno 8y} O} ¥Jom Juswadueyus ey

SUEIe]e)

Le-

z-

€l-

184

[4%:]

[y

Ve

8l

YAYA

2%

8l

05.

0l

Gy

€lLs

000°}

vl

%

000.3

000.3

000.3

000.3

|enjoy A 18bpng

souelleA
(47132

[enjoy
ZLLL

1ebpng
47158

JopeNnD iy L

196png
1eaA [Ind
ZLLL

jejoL

uonelsusbay Aeqqy Weyliepn

Uoilld Jeyiea liv Aeqay weuep

1uswdojans( [jeH wie4 sew

swuwelboid
UOIJeWIOJSUBI | SODIAISS JBWOISNYD

JATIND3IXT 43HD ALNdIA - ONIHOLINOW TVLIdVD F1vdO103dId ¢l/110¢

Page 44



‘el Aealjeq Buluueld pue BuisnoH Bujuiews. ay}
woJ} papunj usaqg sey pue ay@|dwos mou s o8foid siyL

‘pJEMIO) PaLLIBD 8Q 0} Pasu alojaiay}
[Im JoBpng 8y} Jo Ajiolew ay} ‘pajejdwod aq 0} s}eam g | 0}
g @ye} ||m pue zL0g |udy ul Yejs o} pauueld s uopejiesul
‘AjHoys papieme a8q |jiM 10BIU0D 8y} pue a)e|dwod Aliesu
S| swalshAs Buisixe Jo juswedueyua sy} pue sweishs
ALDD Mau JO Uolje|ieisul 8y} 1o} ssadoid Juswalinsold sy

‘pus-ieah ay} Aq peies|o
g 0} payoadxe sI yoym Joypalo [eyded e o} selelal 6
yuow e ainbiy [enjoe salebau syl ‘Jewiuiw aq o} Aoy s!
puadsiepun Aue pue siesulbus sAemybiy 903 Ag paijusp
sjsjep 8yl |l Aupes o) usyepspun Bueqg Ajustino
ale SyJom 8y ‘poled s}osjep yjuow gl 8y} Jo pus sul
18 syuom |euy Joj Buluiewas wns ay} si 196png 000223 dUL

SUEIe)

145

90¢-

ges

14

08

8-

Ll

61

cc

%

000.3

000.3

0003

000.3

[enjoy A Jobpng

aouelRA
4211

[enjoy
471"

Jobpng
ZLLL

JopEND P L

jebpng
JesA [Ind
ZL/LL

jejoL

SHIOAN [enden Bujuue|d

ALDD Aempeo.g uoyybnon

391 SO Aempeoug uoybnoT

¥1 XINNV

INTWJOTIAIA JINONODT ® DONINNV 1d - ONIHOLINON TV1IdVO 91vd0103d1d ¢l/LL0c

Page 45



VHH 8y} yim pspuny
-Julof @1e S$8WSY0S 9S8y 'puBY Ul dJe SHIOM PUB SBWLYDS 9aiy} IXau 8y} Joj pejueld
usaq sey uoissiwliad Buiuueld 186png ulyim pajejdwiod usag Mou SABY SOWSBYOs 9aiuy)
1Sll} 9y} pue peduswwWod sey sajeisy BuisnoH uo swwelboid Buppied jpauls jjo ayj

‘palojiuow Buiaq si uonenyis ayj pue Jesk siy) Juads Ajjnj eq o} pejoadxs
sl ‘syjuel) sawoH Ajdwg pue Sjuels) HOJWOD [euwldy] ‘9ouelsisSsy SHION |[ewS
‘sjuelS) saWOH jus0a( Buipnioul ‘suelb 10j08s ajeAld Jayjo 1o} Jebpng pasiaal Ny ay].

‘paiinbal a4 ||IM 000‘0F3 INoge Jo plemio} Alied e }0a.100 aie suojdwnsse
8s8U} §| "€1/Z10Z Ul 8UO pue Z1/}10Z Ul Juads aq 0} pajoadxe aie Yolym Jo om} ‘000'0Z}3
Buieyoy syuelb abie] osiy) Agq pajoedw) aq Aew ‘1eremoy ‘siyl ‘ZL/LL0Z Ul 0000623
Jo uoiBal ey} ul puads [ej0} B pajewllse pue UOHEN}S 8y} POSSOSSe-oi OABRY SI821j0
Ajjuenbasuo) ‘paasiyoe si alnjpuadxe jo |oAS] palisep oy} a.iojeq sjewsjal Ajjenb
pooB jo slequinu ybiy oAl@oal Ajjusisisuod 0} Alessadau si )i ‘Bujaoudwil si uolenys
8y} 9JIYAA louno) AJUnoD xossT Wodj sjeliajel 10j08s ajeAlld Jo Jaquinu 8y} ul |[ejHoys
e 0} anp ajep 0} pajoadxa Uey} JOMO| Usaq sey sjueli) Ajjioe4 psjgesig uo ainjypusdx3

2L0C Ysiein

L€ Aq 1eno papuey eq [|im (sueo ¢ Buuasadal) 000'¢. L3 yeus paredionue st ‘zl/L L0z ul
apise Jas uoledojje 000'GEZ3 8U} JO 'Z seyd 0} peadoid pjnoys )i Jayjeym pue ‘¢}/z}0z
AjJes ul aWwayos au} JOo $S800NS 8y} Buimaiaal aq ||Im Jap|OH OljojHod BuisnoH 8yl "ueo|
Jad 000'vS3 Jo 1500 abeloAe ue je !siseq Ajnba-paieys B uo sawoy }$09-mo| aseyoind
0} sjueoidde Buisnoy }sisse 0} UOjeID0sSSy BuisnoH aulnogxolg 0} Sueo| sai-jsalajul
8 apinoid [im aseyd jsiiy YL "BWsYdS BY} JO | 8SBUd 104 000'GER3 4O wins au} Buipnjoul
‘000°68/3 J0 196pnq [e10} B sey awayog diysisumQ paieys o uadp ojeledss oy
‘210z lequieldag ul pamalnal 84

0} BWaY0s 8y} JO aIniny 8y} Yum ‘Buieq awi} sy} o) awiayos ay; pepuadsns sey jsuigqe)
oyl ‘peje|dwoo usaq sey sieak snoirald woly swwelbold jueis) diysioumO sWwoH syl

'VH 80jseH 0} pug|
JO oses| 8y} wol} 000'c83 40 jdieoal [elded B BAi@d8l ||IM [IOUN0D 8y} ‘JoB) U] [Iouno) ay}
0} }S00 ]auU OU aq ||IM 818y} 0S ‘Pun- B8y YIMOIS) S,JUSWIUISAOD) 8y} JO 8Sh 8y} S98SIaA0
yoiym puaeog diysisuped (Qod) uswdojpasq jo swweibold molieH-pajsue}g-uopuo
8} Wou palanooal Ajiny oq [IM UORNQLIUOD s jiounc) ayy ‘jeacidde Buiuueld oy josfgns
'Z10Z Yoiey ul Jano juelb sy} ssed (Iim 0043 yeyi pejedioue st} ebuo YBIH ‘plelliN
Je sawoy ajgeploye { JONJ}Suod 0} UofeIoossy BuisnoH sojseH 0} aduejsisse |eloueul)
apinoid 0} BAljBIIUI S,|loUN0D By} adueuly 0} Apusoal pancidde sem uopedoje Syl

SUETIe)

€8S €L9 SLL}
ge- 48 08 43 991
G- b= L0 8le 06¢
vi- ge- [4%4 YAZA 0ee
0 0 ¥8 ¥8 6L€
0 0 0 0 0.
% 000.3 0003 0003 0003
[enjoy A 1ebpng |enjoy 19bpng 19bpng
SouelLiep 47131 42133 JesA |Ind
[471%" Jsyenp piiyL 47135

lejoL

Bupjied 1984S JO 8ieis3 BuisnoH

SJURIS) J0}08S BjeAlld J8Ul0

sjuel9 safjijioed pajgesig

sawsyog diysisumQ swoH

BuisnoH ajgeployy 0} SUOKNGLIU0D

G1 XINNY

-clil

Page 46



‘pus Jeakh auj Aq ||y ul }JoBpng paoueyus oy} puads o} ade|d uj aie
sued pue mainay |eyde) 8y} jo ped se 000'0v L3 AQ pasesuoul Sem sewayds [einjonis Joj 1ebpng ayj -
puey Ul 8le SYIOM pUB SBlBLDS 98I} IXau 8y} Jo} pajuelb usaq sey uoissiwiad Buiuueld pue Jebpng Japun
peja)dwoo usaq aARY SaWwayos 8y} }sii 8y} ‘Bupyied Joaus-}o o} piebai YIAA "000'00€3 Alejewixoidde Ag
ads Japun aq |jim }96png 8y} Jeuyy Jybnoy) si )i pue |ensn ey} Jomo| uaaq sey JeaA siy} Jey 0s asesioul sy}
‘syjuowW Jajuim sy Buunp sesealoul Ajjeiousb eale siy} ul peopjiom ybnouylly "pa| puewep Buiaq yiom sy}
JO aInjeu 0} anp }se810} 0} NP Ajsnouiojou si siedau [ejided jlews uo ainjpuadxe ‘Ajsnolnaid pejels sy

‘suopjeldepe pajgesip 0} piebas yim sjoAs| aunjipuadxe pun4
[elauss) uey) sjeAs] ainypuadxe YyH UO 1094 ajelpawiw aiow e pey sey ssadoid dn-yojes syj ‘sjueus)
[IoUNOD Uo Bunsa} suesw N0 ALIBD 0} AIBSS89U Jou S|} SY "apew uaaq aney sjuswhed ay) pue pajejduwiod
usaq mou aaey suoiejdepe Jofew om) Joj sjuswihed pue paseslo Ajabie] useq sey sisidessy) jeuolednaoo
jouno) AunoD X8ssg WOl suoljepuswiwiooal jo Bopoeq ayy se Jepenb payy sy ul Apueoyubis
dn poeyoid sey sBuijjemp |1ounod Ul suoieldepy pajgesiq uo ainjpuadx3 "pus Jeah auyy Ag 000°0013
Jo uoiBal 8y} uj puadsiepun Ue aq |jim aJay} ey JyBnouy Si 3| "UOSIel| Juapisal pue syiom Jo swwelboid
pejeoipep e adinbal M yoym ‘pasnbal susyoly Meu G/z SwoS oG |[IM 8isy} assym wieq sawl
1e suayoy mauai o} aoejd ul Jnd Bujeq suoieledaid o) anp Ajjeided si sy} ubnoylly | 1L0g lequiedssq Lg
1e se juadsiapun Apueoyiubis aq o} sieadde swwelbold juswadejdal WooIYIeq pue Usyoyy Jeak aal eyl

Jebue} Uo S YdIum ‘Z1L0zZ YoJen L€ Jo
ajep ,Jano youms, sy} ansiyoe o} suejd ay} [jjn} 0} pesueyus usaqg sey swwesbold speibdn AL jeunwiwod
sy} Joj 186pnq 8y} ‘puey JBYIC By} UQ '} 10Z J8qooQ | wolj sajuedwod Ajjn Jojem ay) o} siemas sjeAud
Jo Ayjiqisuodsal uj Jajsuel} 8y} jo asneoaq Ajueoyiubls peonpau useq sey jebpng sbeuieip 8yl ‘Z10Z
YoJB\ Ul 82USWIWIOD 0} anp st awwelibold siy} ‘ejendoidde aiaym ABisua sjgemsusi Buisn swielsAs Bulesy
MaU ||elsul 0} pue sjjem pijos ypm saipadold jeins uj uoiensu; j|em [eusslxa aacidwl 0} dn umelp usaq
sey swwelbold Mau e ‘JIsAemMOH "}00}s Buisnop 8y} jo Jsow 1o} pajejdwiod Ajjeuasse mou ale awwliboid
8y} Ul papnou; sainseaw Aousioie ABisus uonensul Jo| pue jjem AJIABD piepuels 8y} Jey} joe} sy} wolj
paynsal sey siyl ‘000'6z3 Alstewixoidde Aq Juadsiapun aq o} |yl si yaiym ‘1ebpnq Aousiole ABisus sy}
woJj pede jeble} uo Ajjeiausb mou ale s}ebpng asau) [[BIaAQ ‘siuswanoidwil asnoH AeMION pue swia)sAs
Aijue loop ‘sewisyos abeulep ‘sainseau Aouaioiye ABlaua ‘sapeifidn A | |eunwwiod sepnjoul Aiobsied siy |

‘Jobpnq uiyum pue
a)8|dwod mou si swwelboid Juswsoe|dal yue} Jojem ay ] “sylom Bujoepinsal Auodjeq si se pus eak ayj Aq
ads Ajjny eq 0} pejoadxe Mou Si ‘Pa| PUBLLIBP S| YOIYMm ‘SOJSBgsE Lo SIOAA 19b.e) U0 pue jjam Buissaiboid

IS aie sawayos Buoos pue juswade|dal MOpUIM NOAG BUL "JedaA JSe} 8|npayos Jo pesye dlom ssalboid
0} UOISIOSP 8y} JUNOOOE Ojul 8.} 0} JeaA Siy} Yorq pajeds usaq aaey AloBajed sy ul sjebpnq 8y} jo [elenss

*21njonJsey sjessy BuisnoH ay) jo Led se [eacidde Jequisiy 0}
18lgns 210z judy Ul souswiwoo im awweiboud siyl Juswedeldas ajqeqod pue Bulsal [eoujosje alinbal
Uolym sjedele] Buisii o 10| & ale aiay} Jey) payjuapl useqg sey i ‘JonemoH “1esk |eloueul 8y} JO pus a8y}
18 000°G/ L3 J0 uoibal 8y} ul puadsiepun ue aq |im aiay} pajedionue st ‘piemuoy siyy Buosfoid “eyep 0}
ainjipuadxa psjoadxa Uy} Jamoj Ul paynsal sey siy} Ajuenbasuod ‘Jesk siy) Jej 0S SyIom [elides [eoujosje
Jouiw ajow Ul paynsal Ajjeieush sey Buisa) |eoujoa)g "pelejdwiod usag Mou Sey SpielsulN e sisjioq
[enpIAIpUl YliM S18]l0q Jeunwiwiod eoejdes 0} swweifoid sy} pue jobie} uo utewss sepelbdn Buijesy meN

‘aueT] salAd Ul Juswidojensp
jenuajod e yum Jsisse 0} Jequisldeg ui Jouiqen Aq panoidde sem QQ0‘6£Z3F Jo orewnse Alejuswelddns v

‘BuiABS B MOU S| SIU} 810j0I9Y} ‘plemio)
SW0D 8ABY SWIBD JOUMN) OU ‘JOASMOH 'S99} SJUB)NSUOD pawieloun 10} |1/0L0Z ul Joypaio jeyded e
0} sejejal ainbiy aajeBau ay] | Loz AInp Ul }aulgqe) o} peuodal pue pasibe usag mou sey Junoode jeul ay |

[SUEIe)

Ll-

Ll-

VIN

610°}-

0l-

v0¢-

4

£vs°e

ze8'y

920°L

16L°L

yve

6¥S

96

b

0182

¥6¢

099

891°}

¥90'y

26€

oL

156}

6T

8¢

%

000.3

000.3

000.3

0003

lenjoy A 1abpng

souBLBA
(47115

[endy
4213

1ebpng
4915

18penp paiyL

1ebpng
1o |Ind
ZLULL

lejol

SHIOM [BlideD Jaul0

8ouBUS)UIR PauUe|d 1aYI0

SyuB] IBJBAN /
$0}$8qsy / BUlj00¥/SMOPUIAA

Bumay/bunesy

aue salifd

Keqqy weuyyepn ‘spjeybulds

91 XINNV

Page 47



‘|IBJHOUS BU} 90U [[IM [IDUNOD By} pue syiom [eyded auyj o} palidde g mou |jim juelb |y ey 1o8foid ay)

SPJeMO} 000'0.23 JO UOINGLIUOD [eloUBUL B PaIndas UDIUM [NjSSe0ons SEM S|00YoS pepusixd [1ounod Aunod xess3 o} uoneoljdde saniedwoo e ‘Buipuny o} pJebas Ui
‘Aem jensn

ay} Ul Jaulge) o) pajusseid aq |jim podal pue Junodoe [eul sy} ‘paaibe souQ pajewsa Ajleulbuo ueys Jaybiy aq |im j08foid sy} Jo 100 |[eJan0 auj Jeuy Al i 3l ybnoyye
quasaJd Je UMOU)| JOU SI SABjop 8y} Jo 10edwl [BIOUBUL [N} 8U} PUB S}SOD [RUOHIPPE pajoadxaun ussq SABY 81ay} ‘ISASMOH JOBUO0D 8U} Jo 20ud [eul 8y} uo paseq Asuow
10} anjeA poob se usas a.e syiom Buip|ing pue uoieoyoads [aAs] Ybly e o si Bulpjing meu sy} ‘pessalppe Buleq e yolym ‘swisy Buibbeus jo isi| e si aiey) ybnouyy ‘210z
fienige4 9 uo ssaulsnq 1o} pauado |leH 8y} pue 8}8|dWoo MoU aJie SHIOM 8U) INg HOMIBN Jomod MN Ag s8|qed Jjemod [eoljos]e Mau Jo uolje|jeisul 8y} pue uoiedlqe)
}IOM[OB)S UJIM SONsS| 0} anp pakejop alem SYIOM UOIIONIISU0D ‘pling 8y} JO 8sinod 8y} Buung “Ajsjeipalill peoUSWWOD SHIOM [BljiUl pue || 0Z YDJeN Ul UoHONNISUOD
lompleag o} pepJeme Sem Joesuod Buipjing sy} ssecoid Jepusy oy} Bumojjo4 “Buiping 8y} jo 9ZIS 8y} S|gNOp PINOM UDIYM ‘IBal pue Juoly 8y} o} pusixa pue |ey Buisixe
By} ysigqunyal 0} aWaY9s e uo pesibe jauiqe) pue suondo jo abuel e sonpoid 0} pauolssiwWwod sem Apnis Ajljiqises; e ‘syjuow [BieAes jo polied juswdojansp e Buimojjod
Ishug

wJe abuelis) pue [BlUSIOd 1SET ‘S|00YIS JOIUNF PUE JUBU| Wi SBWiT ‘[1ounod ysied [[emBIyD ‘Uoneloossy Aunwwo) wie4 sewi papnjoul suejd ay} jo jusidojeasp
aU} Ul POAJOAU] SJauled JaylQ 'Sseo9e ancidwll 0} SUOHBPUSWIWOSI JIpNY [BUIS)Xd JoaW O} Wie Sewl] WoJj 82IA18S mau e uado pinom 8dlAeg shjauag BuisnoH
2y} Jey} pue AJjIoB; MaU BU) O} JBl} POLIGAUOD B WO} JBJSURI} PINOM 89IAI8G BUISNOH §,/ounoD 8y} ey} pesibe sem 3| “AjiAloe aljjua) s,uslpiiyd Bulsixe Jisyy Buipusixe
Ul Pa)SIajul I9M OUM [IOUN0D) AJUNOD XeSST PUE S}B}Se SU} U0 SI9UMaS|S WOoJ) UONEDO| [BJJUsd By} 0} SBOIAISS OIUIO JISY) Jojsuel) 0} usey alem oym (3sniL diysisuped
X9SS3 UINOS - | 4IS S UMOUY MOU) | Dd XOSST IS8 Wol) JUSWHWWIOD Wil B Ul Paynsal SiyL 9)ese ey} ssoioe AJaAljop yoeeuno pue ayis ay) je AJanjjep jo suwiie) ul
Y109 gny Aousbe-ijnw e wouy uoisiroid ainjny fenusiod ssnosip o} sisuped sy} yim siseq Jeinbei e uo pjay ajem sbujesw ‘paje|dwod Sem 3SI01eXs UOe}NSUOd 8y} 8ouUQ

"S90IAI9S Aouabe-jnw pasijejuad Jo UoISIA0Id By} WoJ) Jyauag pinom wied sewi] jey) psalbe sem }i sieuped
Jo aBuel & pue SjuapIsel [220] UM paynsuoo BuineH -jusweoe|dal jool aje|dwod e paiinbai osie }| "Ajjeulsixa pue Ajjeusiul Yjoq 3l eAoidwij pue asjuiapowl 0} JUsWIsaAUl
JueoyIuBis Jo PesU Ul SBM NG [BUOIIOUN) SEM }i ‘D4 O} %0Bq pouiajsuel} Sem |[ey ey} swi sy Iy “[1ounod ysiied [[emBiyd Ag juswabeuew jo sieaf || Buimoljo} 6002
judy | @ouls )1 pebeuew Sey pue ||y ay} SUMO [1ouno) a8y ‘[lemBIyD ul 81e}s3 Wwie- SeWwlT 8y} JO 84jus0 8y} Ul pejedo] S| pue s0.6| 8Yj 0} Yoeq sajep |leH wled saull

%0 %0 290'tL Le) 290'L 0 290°L [A%CEE! LL-1elN L L-Bny L1-leN
% % 000.3 0003 0003 0003 000,3
196png penciddy 1509 [BUIBLIO uinunO aleq ol 196png sojewinsSy 1800 j08(0ud ajeq aleq aleq ysiui4 eleq pels
0} @ouelep o} eouelep  pejedionuy  dx3 jenoy  panoiddy  Auejuswsiddng [eutbLQ ysiul4 [enoy  Ueis |enjoy [euibLo eulbuQo

1ININJOTIAIA TTVH INHVL SINIT

Page 48

L1 X3aNNV



Agenda Iltem 8

Report to the Finance and
Performance Management Scrutiny

e onean SCRUTINY

Epping Forest District Council

Date of meeting:

Portfolio: Planning & Technology

Subject: Information and Communications Technology (ICT) Update
Responsible Officer: David Newton (01992 564580).
Democratic Services Adrian Hendry (01992 564246).

Officer:

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) To note the findings within the recent Society of Information Technology
Management (SOCITM) benchmarking report for the financial year 2010/2011 and;

(2) To note the progress on ICT projects for 2011/2012.
Executive Summary:
ICT have again taken part in the UK SOCITM benchmarking exercise. This year the SOCITM
report has analysed Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) from only 17 Councils in the UK, 10
less than last year. Only 2 other District Council took part in the survey this year and although
this Authority performed well against much larger Authorities, if this trend continues, it is
debatable whether a meaningful comparison will be possible in future years. The results are
broken down into 3 main categories:

a) Performance

b) Resourcing

¢) Management
This exercise has enabled us to identify areas of good practice and to include those which
need to be developed into the ICT Business Plan. The overall results indicate another very
good performance.
Work on projects within the Business Plan for 2011/2012 is still on-going and this report also
gives an update of progress to-date. The majority of projects are progressing well and are still
in line with the expectations.
Reasons for Proposed Decision:

The terms of reference of the panel include — ‘to monitor and review progress on the
implementation of all major ICT systems’.

Page 49



Other Options for Action:

Members’ could ask for further detailed information on any of the schemes summarised on
the following pages.

Report:

Page 50



1. SOCITM report.

A summary of the major points contained within this comprehensive report are listed below.
The final version of this report is available in the Member’s room.

2. Performance.

The report identified many interesting statistics and a number of the key points are
summarised below.

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)

f)

9)

)

k)

Core applications availability was weighted at 95, well above the median of 75.
The EFDC network experienced zero downtime for the entire year.

Internet availability was 100%.

Website availability was 100%.

Good procurement practices and a very competitive market due to the current
economic climate has again resulted in EFDC having the cheapest hardware costs,
despite no longer being a member of the Essex on Line Partnership (EOLP).

The Total Cost of Ownership (TCO) of PC’s was just above the median. However, it
was only possible to compare this figure against the much larger Authorities.

The cost of telephone calls was again identified as high. A recent tender and resulting
contract awarded to BT will see these costs drop dramatically in the future. However,
there is still a high maintenance charge for the old telephony equipment currently in
place. A project to replace this obsolete switch with a digital Voice Over Internet
Protocol (VOIP) system is on-going. An update is provided later in this report.

Remote and home working accessibility results show that although 33% of staff have
remote access to the EFDC network, very few staff have official home working
arrangements.

EFDC still have a low ratio of users to printers. Currently, EFDC have an average of
just over 3 staff per printer, compared to the median of 6.5. To address this issue, ICT
no longer replace printers unless there is a valid business case to do so.

The server virtualisation project has been completed over a year ago. Virtualised
servers are far cheaper and easier to maintain and EFDC has the highest percentage
of virtualised servers of all participants in the survey.

The average cost per ICT employee was the lowest of the other comparable
Authorities.

3. Resourcing

The Capital Budget was the lowest and Revenue Budget was the highest of comparable
Authorities. The Revenue figure was inflated largely due to the desktop replacement
programme carried out during this period. The completion of this project and other cost
cutting exercises will address this issue in the following years.

4. Management

Page 51



The ICT Management Governance results were good and above the median. However,
Management Practices were below the median, mainly due to the lack of satisfaction
surveys carried out during this period. Satisfaction surveys will be issued to staff during the
next financial year.

5. 2011/2012 Action Plan Update
Good progress has been made and the following projects are now completed;

a) Staged conversion from GroupWise to Outlook email solution. — All staff now have full
access to Microsoft Outlook for both their email and calendar requirements.

b) Mobile working. — (Enable staff to work off-site by accessing emails and documents
using mobile technology). — Access to Email and Calendar can now be delivered
securely to either Council owned or personal mobile phones.

c) I@W (Information at Work) Environment and Street Scene — The continued rollout of
the Corporate Document Management solution.

d) Investigate open-source software and cloud solutions - Open source is fully functional
software at very low cost. An Open Source solution is currently being used to develop
the new EFDC website. Cloud technology also has the potential to offer cheaper
solutions.

e) Full systems review — This Authority has a wide range of diverse systems which
require continued evaluation.

f) Full systems contracts review — Ensure best value for money from all systems.

g) BACS upgrade — Implementation of a high security web based payment collection
system.

h) Major Academy (Revenue & Benefits) upgrade — this new ‘efficiency version’ is aimed
at rationalising the current system to improve ease of use and productivity.

6. Combine Environmental and Street Scene Systems/Gazetteer

Project description; This project will combine both separate applications into a single
instance and then link this to the single Local Property Gazetteer (LPG) reducing duplication
of work.

Situation Report; All data cleansing has taken place and new cases are being added to the
new instance. Unfortunately, this project will not be fully completed on schedule due to the
inability of the supplier to provide a resource to transfer the historical data.

7. Disaster recovery (DR)

Project description; This project will improve the ability of the Council to recover from a
major disaster, by storing data at a remote site and also enabling the decommissioning of the
old computer suite and removing associated overheads.

Situation Report; The supplier for the Wireless DR connection to Parsonage Court has been
appointed and work is currently underway. Following a number of DR exercises, it has
become apparent that focus should be towards improving communications and to prioritise
the replacement of the obsolete analogue telephone switch for a digital VOIP solution.

Page 52



8. Telephony upgrade (VOIP) Converged network.

Project description; Replace the obsolete switch with new digital solution capable of
meeting the additional functionality required by Directorates.

Situation Report; The existing telephone switch is now obsolete and will be unsupported
from the end of 2013. ICT have begun evaluating a number of solutions and the process is
still on-going. A report to Cabinet will be presented in the new financial year. The complexity
and different technologies available as solutions, along with the recent resignation of the
Network Support Analyst, mean that it will not be possible to complete this project on
schedule.

9. Internet / Intranet replacement

Project description; Create in-house solutions developed using low cost open-source
software.

Situation Report; The Intranet solution is now live. The website solution has been
demonstrated to Members’ and is currently being implemented, with an expected live date of
July 2012.

10. Anite Housing (Leasehold Module).

Project description; To activate the leasehold module within the Housing system to facilitate
automation of maintenance charges for flats etc.

Situation Report; This project has been put on hold due to resourcing issues within the
Housing Directorate.

11. Upgrade to Microsoft Office 2010.
Project description; The version of Office currently available is 2003. The licences to
upgrade to 2010 have already been purchased prior to the termination of the Microsoft

Enterprise agreement.

Situation Report; Due to a number of projects over running it has not been possible to
rollout this upgrade. The upgrade will now be included in the business plan for 2012/2013.

12. ICT Strategy.

Project description; The existing ICT strategy is out of date. Both the SOCITM survey and
audit reports recommend this be updated.

Situation Report; The document is now approaching its final iteration and should be
available from the next financial year.

13. Support implementation of the West Essex shared crime and anti-social behaviour
mapping and analysis system.

Situation Report: This project has been dropped by the West Essex partnership due to the
funding being withdrawn.

Resource Implications:

Page 53



The SOCITM report again indicates that ICT have achieved a good balance between service
and cost, offering continued good value for money and with major expenditure and
performance elements either average or better.

Legal and Governance Implications:

None

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

None

Consultation Undertaken:

None

Background Papers:

The SOCITM report 2010/2011 is available in the Members Room

ICT Business Plan 2011/12 — 2012/13.

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

All projects are assessed on an individual basis and a risk capture sheet is contained within
the current ICT Business Plan.

Equality and Diversity:

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council's general equality duties, reveal any
potentially adverse equality implications?

Where equality implications were identified through the initial No
assessment process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been
undertaken?

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?

How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been
addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group? No

Page 54



Age m9

Report to: Finance and Performance
Management Scrutiny Panel

Date of Meeting: 20 March 2012 S C RUT' N Y

Epping Forest District Council

Portfolio: Finance and Economic Development (Councillor G. Mohindra)
Subject: Key Performance Indicators 2011/12 - Quarter 3 Performance Monitoring
Officer contact for further information: S. Tautz (01992 564180)

Democratic Services Officer: A. Hendry (01992 564246)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) That the Scrutiny Panel consider third quarter performance in relation to the
quarterly monitored Key Performance Indicators adopted for 2011/12; and

(2) That, subject to the concurrence of the Finance and Performance
Management Cabinet Committee, proposed targets for the Key Performance
Indicators for 2012/13, be agreed.

Executive Summary:

1. (Acting Chief Executive) Pursuant to the Local Government Act 1999, the Council is
required to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which
its functions and services are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

2. As part of the duty to secure continuous improvement, a range of Key Performance
Indicators (KPI) relevant to the Council’s services and key objectives are adopted each
year. Performance against the KPls is monitored on a quarterly basis and has
previously been an inspection theme in external judgements of the overall performance
of the authority.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

3. The adoption and monitoring of performance against the KPIs provides an opportunity
for the Council to focus specific attention on how areas for improvement are being
addressed, opportunities exploited and better outcomes delivered.

4, KPIls are used as performance measures to asses progress against the Council’'s
annual key objectives. It is important that relevant performance management processes
are in place to review and monitor performance against the key objectives, to ensure
their continued achievability and relevance, and to identify proposals for appropriate
corrective action in areas of slippage or under performance.

Page 55



Other Options for Action:

5.

No other options are appropriate in this respect. Failure to monitor and review
performance against the KPIs and to take corrective action where necessary, could
mean that opportunities for improvement were lost and might have negative
implications for judgements made about the progress of the Council.

Report:

6.

A range of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2011/12 was adopted by the Cabinet
Committee and the Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel in March
2011, and a target was set for at least 70% of the indicators to achieve target
performance by the end of the year. Summary details of the KPIs for the year are
attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

The KPIs are important to the Council’s services and its key objectives, and comprise a
combination of former statutory indicators and locally determined performance
measurers. The aim of the KPls is to focus improvement on services and key objectives
and to improve current performance. Progress in achieving target performance in
respect of the majority of the KPlIs, is reported to the Scrutiny Panel, Management
Board and the relevant Portfolio Holder at the conclusion of each quarter. Performance
in relation to the remaining KPIs is subject to scrutiny at year-end only, as little change
in performance is likely over quarterly periods or where performance is designed to be
reported on an annual basis. These annually reported indicators are identified in
Appendix 1.

Improvement plans are produced for each of the KPIs each year, setting out actions to
be implemented in order to achieve target performance, and to reflect changes in
service delivery. In view of the corporate importance attached to the KPls, the
improvement plans are considered and agreed by Management Board in the first
instance, and are subject to ongoing review between the relevant Service Director and
Portfolio Holder over the course of the year.

The continued relevance of several KPIs adopted for 2011/12, has recently been
considered by both the Scrutiny Panel and the Finance and Performance Management
Cabinet Committee, and a number of indicators have been deleted in favour of
alternative monitoring and reporting mechanisms. These deleted indicators are also
identified in Appendix 1.

Key Performance Indicators 2011/12 — Quarter 1, 2 and 3 Performance

10.

11.

12.

A ‘dashboard’ headline third quarter performance report in respect of the overall KPI
position at 31 December 2011, is attached as Appendix 2 to this report, together with
detailed cumulative performance reports for each of the quarterly monitored KPIs for
2011/12.

The nine-month position with regard to the achievement of target performance for the
KPls for 2011/12 is as follows:

(a) 16 (59.26%) have achieved the second quarter performance target; and
(b) 11 (40.74%) have not achieved the second quarter performance target.

For comparison, 14 (50.00%) of the KPIs had achieved the respective target at the end
of the second quarter of the year, although it should be noted that one quarterly
monitored indicator (KPI 02 - Visits to the Council's website), has been deleted in the
intervening period.

Page 56



13. Management Board has recently considered third-quarter KPI performance for 2011/12.
Whilst the overall number of indicators achieving target remains below 70%, the
consistency and direction of performance is felt to be encouraging. Of the KPls
reported as achieving target at the end of the second quarter of the year, none have
subsequently fallen back below target in the third quarter. In addition to maintaining this
performance, in all of the service directorates that reported KPI performance below
target in the second quarter, at least one additional KPI has achieved target at the end
of the third quarter.

14. The on-line Corporate Strategy Guide has recently been updated with the third quarter
KPI performance reports for 2011/12. Using visits to the ‘Our Performance’ page on the
Council’s website as a proxy indicator for visitors to the guide, the three months from
November 2011 to the end of January 2012 witnessed in excess of sixty visits, with an
average dwelling time on the page of up to three minutes.

15. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to consider the Council’'s performance for the first nine
months of 2011/12, in relation to the quarterly monitored KPIs for the year. Service
directors and other appropriate officers will be in attendance at the meeting to respond
to any issues in respect of current performance against specific indicators.

Key Performance Indicators 2012/13 — Targets

16. As the continued relevance of the KPI set has recently been considered, it is not
intended that any further changes will be made to the KPIs for 2012/13. Service
directors have therefore sought to identify provisional targets for each indicator with the
relevant Portfolio Holder, based on third-quarter performance (and the estimated
outturn position) for the current year. Details of the proposed KPI targets for 2012/13,
are set out at Appendix 3.

17. The KPIs will comprise the totality of the Council's formal performance indicator
measures for 2012/13. Improvement plans will be developed for each KPI, identifying
actions to achieve target performance, which will be considered and agreed by
Management Board. As part of this process, the Board will also review the provisional
targets for each KPI with reference to outturn data for 2011/12 when this available. Any
revisions to targets on the basis of the outturn position, will be reported to the Scrutiny
Panel and the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee in June
2012.

18. As itis not yet known whether the Council’s overall aim of achieving target performance
for at least 70% of the KPIs for 2011/12 will be achieved, it is recommended that
identification of a corporate KPIl performance improvement target for 2012/13 be
considered when the KPI outturn data for 2011/12 is reported.

19. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to agree the proposed KPI targets for 2012/13. These
targets will also be considered by the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet
Committee at its meeting on 19 March 2012, and the views of the Committee in this
respect will be reported to the Scrutiny Panel meeting.

Resource Implications:

The respective service director will identify the resources required to meet the proposed KPI
targets for 2012/13.

Legal and Governance Implications:

There are no legal implications or Human Rights Act issues arising from the
recommendations in this report, which ensure that performance management processes are

Page 57



in place to review and monitor performance in key areas and to identify proposals for
appropriate corrective action in instances of slippage or under performance.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

The respective service director will identify any implications arising from proposals for KPI
targets for 2012/13, in respect of the Council’s commitment to the Nottingham Declaration for
climate change, the ‘Safer, Cleaner, Greener’ initiative, or any crime and disorder issues
within the district.

Consultation Undertaken:

The performance information and targets and set out in this report have been submitted by
the respective service director, and have been reviewed by Management Board.

Background Papers:

Third quarter KPI performance submissions for 2011/12 held by the Performance
Improvement Unit. KPI calculations and supporting documentation held by the respective
service director.

Impact Assessments:
Risk Management

The respective service director will identify any risk management issues arising from the
proposed KPI targets for 2012/13.

Equality and Diversity:

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for relevance to the
Council’'s general equality duties, reveal any potentially adverse equality implications?

No. However, the respective service director will identify any equality issues arising from the
proposed KPI targets for 2012/13.

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment process, has a
formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? N/A

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?
N/A

How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been
addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group? N/A

Page 58



Key Performance Indicators 2011/12

2011/12
Directorate KPI Description (Old) Description (New) Reporting
Ref. No. Frequency
KPI 01 The level of the Equality Framework for Local Government to which the Council What progress did we make with our work on equality and diversity? How well did the Council Annual
Deputy conforms comply with the Equality Framework for Local Government?
KPI1 02 |The level of visits to the Council's website (DELETED) Deleted as KPI for 2011/12 by the Finance & Performance Management Scrutiny Panel (15 Quarterly
November 2011) and Finance & Performance Management Cabinet Committee (16 January
2012). Director of Finance and ICT/Acting Chief Executive to bring forward proposals for
Chief replacement website visits indicator once the Council’s new website has been rolled-out and an
approach to meeting the requirements of the European Union Cookies Directive has determined
KPI 03 | The quality of the Council's website (DELETED) Deleted as KPI for 2011/12 by the Finance & Performance Management Scrutiny Panel (15 Annual
Executive November 2011) and Finance & Performance Management Cabinet Committee (16 January
2012).
KPI 04 |The level of user satisfaction with the Council's website What percentage of visitors to the council website were satisfied with their experience? Target Annual
revised to 70% for 2011/12 (from previous National Average +15%) (Finance & Performance
Management Scrutiny Panel (15 November 2011) and Finance & Performance Management
Cabinet Committee (16 January 2012).
Cc@rate KPI1 10  |Working days lost due to sickness absence How many working days did we lose due to sickness absence? Quarterly
é%port KPI 11 Rent Arrears (Commercial and Industrial Property) What percentage of the rent we were due to be paid for our commercial premises was not paid? Annual
s&Tces KPI 12 Occupation Rate (Commercial and Industrial Property) What percentage of our commercial premises was let to tenants? Annual
©
Environment KPI 20 Residual household waste per household How much non-recycled waste was collected for every household in the district? Quarterly
& Street KPI 21 Household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting What percentage of all household waste was sent to be recycled, reused or composted? Quarterly
Scene KPI 22 Improved street and environmental cleanliness (litter) What percentage of our district had unacceptable levels of litter? Quarterly
KPI 23 Improved street and environmental cleanliness (detritus) What percentage of our district had unacceptable levels of detritus (dust, mud, stones, rotted Quarterly
leaves, glass, plastic etc.)?
KPI 24 Improved street and environmental cleanliness (fly-tipping) How well have we done in both reducing flytipping and taking action against those believed to be Quarterly
responsible?
KPI 25 Environment and Neighbourhoods Team service standards What percentage of the issues and complaints received by the Environment & Neighbourhoods Quarterly
Team received an initial response within 3 days?
Finance KPI 30 Invoices paid within 30 days of receipt What percentage of the invoices we received were paid within 30 days? Quarterly
&ICT KPI 31 Level of Council Tax collection What percentage of the district's annual Council Tax was collected? Quarterly
KPI 32 Level of National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) Collection What percentage of the district's annual business rates was collected? Quarterly
KPI 33 Processing of new benefit claims On average, how many days did it take us to process new benefit claims? Quarterly




201112
Directorate KPI Description (Old) Description (New) Reporting
Ref. No. Frequency
KPI 34 Processing notification of changes of circumstance for benefit claims On average, how many days did it take us to process notices of a change in a benefit claimant's Quarterly
circumstances?
KPI 35 | The number of competed fraud investigations How many benefits fraud investigations were completed by the Council? Quarterly

09 abed




201112

Directorate KPI Description (Old) Description (New) Reporting
Ref. No. Frequency
Housing KPI 40 Rent collected as a proportion of rents owed on housing revenue account dwellings What percentage of the rent due from our council home tenants was paid? Annual
KPI 41 Average number of days to re-let council dwellings On average, how many days did it take us to re-let a Council property? Quarterly
KPI 42 Emergency repairs undertaken within target time What percentage of emergency repairs to our council properties were completed within 24 Quarterly
hours?
KPI 43 Urgent repairs undertaken within target time What percentage of urgent repairs to our council properties were completed within five working Quarterly
days?
KPI 44  |Routine repairs undertaken within target time What percentage of routine repairs to our council properties were completed within six weeks? Quarterly
KPI 45 |Satisfaction with repairs How satisfied were our tenants with the standard of the repairs service they received? Quarterly
KPI 46 |Affordable homes delivered (gross) How many affordable homes were built in the District? Quarterly
KPI 47 Households living in temporary accommodation How many households were housed in temporary accommodation? Quarterly
KPI 48 Level of non-decent council homes What percentage of our council homes were not in a decent condition? Quarterly
Planning & KP1 50 |Additional homes provided (net) What was the net increase or decrease in the number of homes in the district? Quarterly
E mic KPI 51 Processing of major planning applications within target time (13 weeks) What percentage of major planning applications were processed within 13 weeks? Quarterly
D e@pm ent KPI 52 Processing of minor planning applications within target time (8 weeks) What percentage of minor planning applications were processed within 8 weeks? Quarterly
(O] KPI 53 Processing of other planning applications within target time (8 weeks) What percentage of other planning applications were processed within 8 weeks? Quarterly
2 KPI 54 Planning Appeals - Officer Recommendation What percentage of planning applications recommended by planning officers for refusal were Quarterly
overturned and granted permission following an appeal (a lower figure is better and is expressed
as a percentage of the number of appeals lodged)?
KPI 55 Planning Appeals - Member Reversal of Officer Recommendation What percentage of planning applications, refused by Council Members against the Quarterly
recommendation of the planning officers, were granted permission following an appeal (a lower
figure is better and is expressed as a percentage of the number of appeals lodged)?
KPI 56 Supply of ready to develop housing sites How much of the land required to meet our house building needs over the next five years was Annual
available to be delivered over the next five years?
KPI 57 Local Development Scheme - Achievement of Milestones (DELETED) Deleted as KPI for 2011/12 by the Finance & Performance Management Scrutiny Panel (20 DELETED
September 2011) and Finance & Performance Management Cabinet Committee (16 January
2012). The Local Development Framework Cabinet Committee has resolved that no formal Local
Development Scheme be submitted to the Secretary of State at this stage, but that an informal
timetable be published on the Council’s website.
KPI 58 CO2 reduction from local authority operations (DELETED) Deleted as KPI for 2011/12 by the Finance & Performance Management Scrutiny Panel (20 DELETED

September 2011) and Finance & Performance Management Cabinet Committee (16 January
2012). An annual report on the Council’s progress in securing a reduction in its carbon
emissions is in future to be presented to the Safer, Cleaner, Greener Scrutiny Panel.




2011/12
Directorate KPI Description (Old) Description (New) Reporting
Ref. No. Frequency
KPI 59 Levels of fuel poverty (DELETED) Deleted as KPI for 2011/12 by the Finance & Performance Management Scrutiny Panel (20 DELETED

September 2011) and Finance & Performance Management Cabinet Committee (16 January
2012). A new approach to assessing and addressing levels of fuel poverty in the district is to be
developed for consideration by the Safer, Cleaner, Greener Scrutiny Panel.

29 abed




Epping Forest District Council Quarterly Key Performance Indicators 2011412 - Summary Dashboard & Performance Report:

Environment & Strest Scene.

Year End
Prediction

B = Uncertain

M No (11)
7 Yes (16)

€9 obed

Finance & ICT ' ﬁnusﬁ?ﬂi _ fﬁ.‘i&ﬂﬂ%ﬂi_ﬁiﬁ.&ﬂ#ﬂmﬁiﬁﬂHﬁiﬁﬂmﬂf@i




T T T

Corporate Support Services Quarterhy KPls

Huowe many warking days did we lose due to sickness
ahsence?

1.86

KPI10

Emvironment & Street Scene Quarterly KPIs

Howe much non-recycled wwaste was collected for every
KF'IEIZI_U ettt 106 g4 [ 200 190 [ 2 zar W 420

Q ynihat percentage of all household waste was sent to he
KRIZIQ L od reteed or composteds 60.34% 61.94% [ 60.07% 6216% [ s9.34%  Go79% W] sso00%

»
N what percentage of our district had unacceptable levels of

KELRZ i s 10% 9% [vf] 10% 6% [  10% 7% W] 10%
Wihat percentage of our district had unacceptable levels of

KPI 23 detritus (dust, mud, stones, rotted leaves, glass, plastic 13% 0% [  13% 6% [ 3% 5% W] 13w
etc)?

Haowe weell hawe wwe done in hoth reducing Mytipping and
taking action against those believed to he responsible?
What percentage ofthe issues and complaints received
KPI25 bythe Environment & Meighbouthoods Tear received an - 97.00%  95.30% [l 9500% os20% [¥ ss00%  orsown [ o9500%
initial response within 3 days?

LTh)
L]
[ TR
LEN)
[T5)
—_—
L]

kP24



Quarterly Indicators {cont.)

Finance & ICT Quarterly KPIs

kP30

P31

kP32

kP33

kPl 34

kP 35

o
QO

Q
(¢

VWithat percentage ofthe invaices we received were paid
weithin 30 days?

VWhat percentage of the district's annual Council Tax was
collected?

VWhat percentage ofthe district's annual business rates
was collected?

ion average, how many days did ittake us to process new
henefit claims?

ion average, how many days did ittake us to process
hotices of a chande in a henefit claimant's circumstances?

How many benefits fraud investigations were completed by
the Council?

Huusilgﬂuarterly KPIs

kPl 41

kPl 42

kPl 43

Pl 44

kPl 45

P 48

kP47

kPl 43

Cn averade, how many days did ittake us to re-let a
Council property?

What percentage of emergency repairs to our council
propedties were completed within 24 hours?

What percentage of urgent repairs to our council properdies
were campleted within five warking days?

What percentage of routine repairs to our council
propeties were completed within sixweeks?

Howy satisfied were our tenants with the standard of the
repairs semice they received?

Howe many affordable homes were huilt in the District?

Howe many househaolds were housed in tempoararny
accommuodation?

What percentage of our council homes were notin a
decent candition?

23.00

5.00

125

30

HE%

95%

H5%

5938.00%

G0

0.00%

27.50%

30.44%

26.27

4.72

Ta

30

HE%

75%

HE%

=

52

0.00%

¥ a0
| L

[
5%

48.00%
44
L
¥ ooo%

.......

56.18%

26.68

8.73

231

a4

8%

491%

HE%

100.00%

14

B1

0.00%

JEE N

v

-

.I-. - - --:
Lluamer a

a0

HY%

95%

HE5%

98.00%

26

0O

0.00%

47 %

78.03% F’] 97.30%

21.07% . 48.00%

26.88

8.83

ae4

32

HE%

o6%

HE%

§59.00%

14

57

0.00%

£3
v

{NEREKEEE

23.00

2.00

00

30

HY%

45%

Y55

95.00%

112

&0

0.00%




Planning & Economic Development Quarterly KPIs

Whatwas the netincrease or decrease in the number of
RPLSES G e 30 B 140 W 113 223 M 1e0
What percentage of major planning applications were
REFS1 e twifn S weakes 31.00% 8671% | 2100%  eeoen V] s100%  sz27e% [ 81.00%
What percentage of minor planning applications were
KRR S i a100%  76.54% [ e1oo%  7rosw [ eroox 7o [ e100%
U
QO 4t at percentade of ather planning applications were
KRS o e i ety 03.00% 9267% [| 9300%  e277% | 9300%  ors2% | oz00%
o
O>\what percentage of planning applications recaommended
KPI54 iy planning officers for refusal were overtumed and 2000% 2220% [ 2000%  2z2o% M z000%  1mas% [ zooo0%
granted permission following an appeal?
What percentage of planning applications, refused by
KPI55  Council Members against the planning officer's s000%  50.00% [ s000%  4615% (V] sooox  seosw [ s0.00%

recomimendation, were granted permission on appeal?



/9 abed

Epping Forest
District Council

E

2010/ 11 Key Performance Indicators

Corporate Support Services

KPI

10



KFl 10 How many working days did we lose due to sickness absence?

Indicater previeusly known as: LPI 28

Additional Information: This indicator monitors the level of staff sickness absence across the authority, and supports the implementation of

the Council's Managing Absence Policy. Quarterly targets and performance details for this indicator represent the cumulative total for the
year to date,

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01952 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

20 Quarter Target Actual :
18
Q3/11/12 5.77 5.37 .
16
14 Q2/11/12 3.64 3.50 .
12 10.50 01711712 1.86 1.86 .
10 :
we Lok 7.86 Q4/10/11 2,00 7.86 .
8
) 5.84
FY(=) 5.37 03/10/11 6.00 5.24 - v
A ) 3.60 3.50
D o
o 1.88 1.86 Annual 2011/12 - 7.75 days Is it IIKEI}F that the
2 Target: 2010/11 - 8.00 days target will be met
at the end of the
S HihE SRR RPE e RIS AT AVA Y B AR Rl iE s A T A lndicatar of good perrormance: year?
Q4/07/08 Q4/08/09 Q4/09/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10{11 Q4/10/11 Q1/11/12 Q2/11/12 Q3/11/ A lower NUMber of days is gsod =

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) The annual target has been reduced to an average of 7.75 days for | [(Quarter 3 2011/12) None required at this time
201172012, The outturn for Q51-3 is under the new target,

The calculation for KPI 10 has been amended slightly in that the Full Time Equivalent
(FTE) figure is calculated a5 an average of the opening FTE for the quarter and the
closing FTE far the quarter.




69 abed

Epping Forest
District Council

E

2010/ 11 Key Performance Indicators

Environment & Street Scene

KPI
20
21
22
23
24

25



KP120  How much non-recycled waste was collected for every household in t_he"digtri;t'-?

Indicator previcusly known as: Ml 191

Additional Information: This indicator supports reductions in the amount of residual waste collected, through less overall waste and more
reuse, recycling and composting. Quarterly targets and performance details for this indicator are measured in Kilograms per household,
and represent the cumulative total for the year to date.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01952 554472

Current and prexvious quarters performance

600 — i Quarter Target Actual :
| Q3/11/12 311 287
500 247
392 Q2711712 209 190
400 -
1711
— i Q1711712 106 o4 E
300 -
Q4710711 00 292
-‘E 195 190
% Q3s/10/11 375 290 -
N " 94
100 o
o Annual 201112 -420 kg Is it likely that the
Target: 201011 -500 ky target will be met
i Indicator of good performance: artns andelthe
¢ ear?
Q4/08f09 Q4/09/10 Q171011 Q2/10f11 Q3f10711 Q4/10f11 Qi1/11f12 Q2fi1f12 Q3fiifi12 A lower waste figure is good i y
BS

Zomment on current performance {including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) This is a satisfactory outcome and is marginally below the Q3 (Cluarter 3 2011/12) None reguired at this time
outturn for 2010411, Although more waste is generated in Q4 through the Christmas
hioliday period, the absence of adverse weather to date should ensure that Q4 doesn't
rise and that the target of 420ky is bettered at year end.




KPI 21 What percentage of all household waste was sent to be recycled, reused or cqmpgs’.ted?-

Indicator previcusly known as: Nl 192

Additional Information: This indicator supports year on year reductions in the amount of residual waste collected, and measures the
percentage of household waste arisings sent for reuse, recycling, composting or anaerobic digestion.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

100 Quarter Target Actual :
a0
Q3/11/12 59, 34% a0, 79%
2 v
Q25117512 a0.07% a2.16%
2 61.53% 61.25% 60.51% 59.14% 61.94% 62.16% 60.79% E i
o 51.17% Q1/11/12  60.34%  61.04% ﬁ
50 4%
Q4/10/11 £Eg.00% 59, 14% m
40
Q3510411 £3.00% a0.51% “ ¥
Annual 201112 -58.00% Is it Iikely that the
10 Target: 201011 - 58.00% target will be met
b Indicator of good parformance: atthe end ofthe
Qa/08/09 Qaj09/10 Qi/10f11 Q2f10/11 Q3/10711 Q4f10/11 Qifi1if12 Q2fiifi:z Q3fiifi2 4 P ; year?

A higher percentage recycled is good
gher p g ¥ g . .

Zomment on current performance {including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) This is an encouraging result showing a wery slight improvement on | [(Quarter 3 2011/12) None required at this time
the same period last year. Given that no further major changes to systems are
anticipated, we will need to maintain educational programs plus introducing rmore
recycling systems into multi-occupied dwellings to try to ensure that this level of
performance is maintained, and if passible improved further.




KEl 22 What percentage of our district had unacceptable levels of litter?

Indicator previcusly known as: Nl 195{a}

Additional Information: This indicator seeks to reduce unacceptable levels of litter. Performance is based on surveys of prescribed sites

carried out over four quarterly periods each year, and represents the percentage of relevant land with deposits of litter which exceed the
acceptable level.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 01952 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

100 — Quarter Target Actual :.
g-n | -
Q3711712 10% 79% .
“ L
70 Q2/11/12 10% 6% .
60 — Q1/11/12 10% 0% -
5“ | -
Q4/10/11 10% 9%, .
wY
3.%._ Q2/10/11 10% 10% - =
@
20
N 11% 9% 10% 9%, 9% = P Anhual 2011/12 - 10% Is it likely that the
10 [ ; )
] Target: 2010/11 - 10% target will be met
i Indicator of good performance: artns andelthe
* aear?
Q4/08/09 Q4/09/10 Q1710711 Q2/10/11 Q41011 QL/11/12 Q2/11/12 Q3/11/12 KIS wer phtoentans is yood Y. .
MNCEraln

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Period 3 2011/12) Itwas suggested in repoding at Q2 that the result may 'slip' a little (Feriod 3 201 1/12) No corrective action as such, but monitaring pressure will be
as we entered the winter months. This has proven to be the case and it would not be maintained on the contractor to achieve high standards.

surprising to see that trend continue into Q4. That said we remain hopeful that the
target of 10% will be achieved for 201112




KEl 23 What percentage of our district had unacceptable levels of detritus (dust, mud, stones, rotted

leaves, glass, plastic etc.)?

Indicater previously known as: NI 195(bj

Additional Information: This indicator seeks to reduce unacceptable levels of detritus. Performance is based on surveys of prescribed
sites carried out over the four quarterly periods each year, and represents the percentage of relevant land with deposits of detritus which
exceed the acceptable level.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01952 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

100 Quarter Target Actual :
a0
Q3/11/12 13% 5% -
80
70 Q2/11/12 13% £% .
s Q1/11/12 13% 9% .
50
Q4/10/11 13% 11%
w v
Q2/10/11 13% 7% - =
S X% 11% -
10 8% 7% e 6% i Annual 201112 -13% Is it likely that the
. ' Target: 2010/11 - 13% target will be met
i Indicator of good performance: artns andelthe
: ear?
Q4/08/09 Q4/09/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10f11 Q4/10f11 Q1/11/12 Q2{11/12 Q3/11/12 A lower percentage Is good v. :
23

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Period 3 2011/12) As encouraging as this outturn appears, itis slightly false in that the  ||[(Feriod 3 201 1/12) As with litter, no corrective action is required but pressure will be
current transects used far monitoring are perhaps not quite as representative of the maintained on the contractor to achieve the highest possible standards.

district as a whole as are some others. Therefore, the 9% is unlikely to be maintained
going forwards into G4 ar into 2012413, We still howewver anticipate bettering the target
of 13% for 2011412 and should be in a position to confidently reduce that target for
2012413,




KPl24  How well have we done in both reducing flytipping and taking action against those believed to be

responsible?

Indicator previcusly known as: Nl 196

Additional Information: This indicator seeks to achieve reductions in the total number of incidents and an increase in enfoercement action
taken to deal with the illegal disposal of waste. Performance is represented by Grade 1 (Very Effective), Grade 2 (Effective), Grade 3 (Not
Effective), or Grade 4 (Poor).

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Uinit by email on performance@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01992 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

4 — Quarter Target Actual :
Q3/11/12 3 1
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 -
il 02/11/12 3 3 .
2 Q1/11/12 3 3 .
2
Q4/10/11 5 3 .
.
@ 1 Q3/10/11 o 3
1 @ . ¥
-ﬂ ) )
A Annual 2011/12 - Grade 3 Is it likely that the
Target: 2010/11 - Grade 2 target will be met
4 08/09 Q4/09/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 0/11 0/11 Q1/11/12 Q2/11/12 Q3/11/12 ldicatar of good perrermance: :;;r;: snd ofthe
Qa/08/ Q4/09/10 Q1f10f Q2f10f Q3/10/ Q4/10/f Q1/11/ Q2f11f Q3f11/ A lower grade is good . y
ES5

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) This is a complex KPP to monitor and report, but we have now (Cluarter 3 2011/12) Mo additional actions reguired at this time. Enforcement activity
reached a position where the changes to data collection made over recent years enable ||to be maintained at a high level with prosecutions taken where there is sufficient

us to report back with greater confidence. Q3 has produced the first Grade 1 outcome, | |evidence to produce a realistic likelihood of & cornviction.

reflecting a high level of enfarcement activity and a reduction in fiy tipping overall. This
will e difficult if not impossible to sustain because of the nature of the issue and the
measurement process. Howewver, we remain confident about achieving the target of level
3 and we may be in a position to recommend Grade 2 as the target for 2012413,




KPI25  What percentage of the issues and complaints received by the Environment & Neighbourhoods

Team received an initial response within 3 days?

Indicator previeusly known as: LP1 51

Additional Information: Dealing with 'envire-crime' is a key element of the 'Safer, Cleaner, Greener' initiative, and this indicator measures
the percentage of issues raised and complaints received by the Environment and Neighbourhooods Team that are responded to within
three working days

Far enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01952 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

97.09% % 97.80% 96.60% £ 97.830%
100 94.70% 36.20% 95.30% 96.20% Quarter Target Actual :
90
Q3/11/12  95.00%  97.80%
5 v
70 02/11/12  95.00%  96.20% E
60 01/11/12  97.00%  95.30% .
50
Q4/10/11  95.00%  96.60%
o v
03/10/11  95.00%  97.80% H =
Annual 201112 -97.00% Is it Iikely that the
10 Target: 2010/11 - 95.00% target will be met
5 09/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 10/11 0/11  Qi/11/12  Q2f11/12 11/12 lndicatat of good perrarmance: :;;r;: snd ofthe
Qa/09/ Q1/10/1 Q2/10/ Q3f10/1 Q4/10/f Q1/11/ Q2f11/ Q3fi1f A higher percentage is good . y
ES5

Zomment on current performance {including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) The original target of 37% was scaled back to 95% on the basis that | [[Quarter 3 201 1/12) None reguired
whilst achievable itwould cause a skewing of priorities. Although 37% has been
achieved in Q3 the overall Q4 outturn is anticipated to be between 92% and 97% and
therefare no changes to targets for 2012/13 are recommended.




9/ abed

Epping Forest
District Council

E

2010/ 11 Key Performance Indicators

Finance & ICT

KPI
30
31
32
33
34

35



KPl 30 What percentage of the invoices we received were paid within 30 days®?

Indicator previcusly known as: LPI1 13

Additional Information: This indicator encourages the prompt payment of undisputed invoices for commercial goods and services

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

98%0 g704, 98%a 98% 98%0 98% g0y

e 90% 919, 9204 Quarter Target Actual :
20
Q311712 07% 02%
s 3
70 Q2711712 7% 91% .
6a Q1/11/12 97% 90% .
50
Q4710711 02% 07 %
w x|
Q3710711 98% 98% - y
Annual 201112 -97.00% Is it Iikely that the
10 Target: 2010/11 - 98.00% target will be met
i Indicator of good performance: atthe ang.akthe
Q4/07/08 Q4/08709 Q409710 Q1/10f11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10/11 Q4/10f11 Q1/11f12 Q2/11/12 Q3f11/12 A higher per?:enta';e is good : ﬁr‘?
Mo
Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:
(Quarter 3 2011/12) Performance has recovered from Quarter 1 up from 20% to 92%. (Cluarter 3 2011/12) The proposal to reduce the quantity of invoices processed for
The actual monthly peformance for December was 96%. There tends to be more building supplies is going ahead in the form of a specific contract for this. The

invoices processed in the final quarter so the outturn might reach 94% but the target of | |[administrative burden will be significantly reduced though the impact on the figures
87% will be not met. Housing Services perfarmance in December is now up to 96% which | [for this financial year is likely to be minimal.

i5 in line with the total for that month. Currently 79% of local suppliers have been paid
within 20 Days, this is up fram 79% at quarter 2. Actual perfarmance for December is at
8.3% which is higher than last vear actual.




KPPl 31 What percentage of the district's annual Council Tax was collected?

Indicator previeusly known as: LPI 14

Additional Information: This indicator monitors the rate of collection of Council Tax. Quarterly targets and performance details for this
indicator represent the cumulative total for the year to date.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

T B e T s W

98.10% 97.60% 97.48% 97.85% A _
: Quarter Target Actual -— e M
90 S
77,8406 78,0306 Q3/11/12  77.00%  78.03% . S
“ = e - .
70 Q2/11/12  52.40%  52,70% . S
60 52.43% 52.70% Q1/11/12  27.38%  27.50% -
50
Q4/10/11  97.80%  07.85% .
27.39% 27.50% 08410711 73355 F704% - =
Annual 201112 -97.80% Is it Iikely that the
10 Target: 2010/11 - 97.80% target will be met
at the end of the
S ieniie al TR R i AT R AT AR AL ST R lndicatat of good perrarmance: year?
Q4/07/08 Q4/08/09 Q4/05/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10/11 Q4/10/11 QL/11/12 Q2/11/12 Q3/11/ B HIGheF BeTaertige 1S 4o od -
MNCEraln

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) The current collection rate is 0.09% up on the same stage last year |[(Quarter 3 20117120 Full billing, collection and recovery processes will continue to
and 0.13% up on the the profiled target for this quarter. collect outstanding armounts.




KEl 32 What percentage of the district's annual business rates was collected?

Indicator previeusly known as: LPI 15

Additional Information: This indicator monitors the rate of collection of National Non-Domestic rates. Quarterly targets and performance
details for this indicator represent the cumulative total for the year to date.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

98.41% 97.58% 97.56% 97.47%

e Quarter Target Actual : Dueutons sbe ot eeums
20 . o
8L64% 8107% | (3/11/12 ©2.08%  ©1.07% . -
80
70 Q2/11/12  56.61%  56.18% .
56.12% 56.18%

60 01/11/12  30.35%  30.44% ﬁ
50

Q4/10/11  08.00%  97.47% .
40

30.19% 30.44%
Q3/10/11  73.50%  81.64% n =
Annual 2011112 -98.00% Is it Iikely that the
19, Target: 201011 -98.00% target will be met
. Indicator of good performance: atthe end ofthe
Q4/07/08 Q470809 Q4/09/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10/11 Q4/10/11 Q1/11/12 Q2/11/12 Q3/11/12 A higher b er?: entazq <isgosa . year?

. Lincertain

(Quarter 3 2011/12) Collection perfarmance is 0.7 down on the same stage |ast year (Cluarter 3 2011/12) The section will continue to undertake all necessary hilling,
and 1.01% down on the profiled target. Of concern is that defaults in rates payments collection and recovery processes to collect the outstanding amounts.

have increased during the year which has seen the collection perfarmance worsen,
particularly in assessments dependent on discretionary spend by customers such as
restaurants and pubs. This situation consequently mirrars the on-going econormic
problems. In addition, there are same substantial accounts awaiting action by the
Yaluation Office Agency and officers are attermpting to get these moved along.

Zomment on current performance {including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:




KPPl 33 On average, how many days did it take us to process new benefit claims?

Indicateor previeusly known as: LPI 16

Additional Information: This indicator monitors the administration of Housing and Council Tax Benefit. Targets and performance are
measured in days.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

50 47.12 Quarter Target Actual :
Q3/11/12 23.00 26,88 .
40 3734
3341 Q25117512 23.00 26.68 .
29.45
30 R 26.27 26.68 26.88 Q1/11/12 23.00 26,27 .
23.45 22 08
Q4/10/11 25,00 22,96 .
20 Y
)
) Q3510411 25.00 23.45 - -
)
10 op
D Anhual 2011/12 - 23.00 Days Is it likely that the
Target: 2010/11 - 25.00 days target will be met
at the end of the
¢ Indicator of good performance: aar?
Q4/07/08 Qa/03/09 Q4/09/10 Q1/10f11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10/11 Qaf10/11 Q1/11/12 Q2f11f12 Q3/11/12 A lower number of days is good ]F. :
LIncertain

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) Performance is monitored on a weekly basis and improvements to (Cluarter 3 2011/12) Due to the current staffing situation, it is unlikely that the target

processes are made when appropriate. Currently there are four vacant posts plus an of 23 days will be achieved but it is hoped that performance can at least be
Officer on maternity leave. These wacancies are having an impact but resources are maintained at the current level. This will however be dependent upon the staffing
bieing managed to target performance for the KPI's, whilst activities not relating to level not deteriorating further. Recruitment had bheen delayed pending further
performance improvernent are not being prioritised. Additional queries have been information on the precise impact of Welfare Reforms.

created by the recent and proposed changes to the welfare systerm.




KPl 34 On average, how many days did it take us to process notices of a change in a benefit claimant’s

circumstances?

Indicator previcusly known as: LP1 17

Additional Information: This indicator monitors the administration of Housing and Council Tax Benefit. Targets and performance are
measured in days.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

15 —14.39 Quarter Target  Actual -
Q3/11/12 2.00 2.93 .
10.67
9.39 9.72 Qz2/11/12 8.00 8.73 .
=l " '8.92 273 8.93
Q1/11/12 8.00 9.72 .
6.05 Q4/10/11 8.00 4.67 -
4.L3 4.67
» ,J Q3/10/11 8.00 5.92 . y
)
)
D Annual 201112 - B8.00 days Is it likely that the
i Target: 2010/11 - 8.00 days target will be met
at the end of the
¢ Indicator of good performance: aar?
Q4/07/08 Q4/08/09 Q4/09/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10/11 Q4/10f11 Q111712 Q2/11/12 Q3f11/12 A lower number of days is good 'il". !
Yes

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) Performance is monitored on a weekly basis and improvements to (Cluarter 3 2011/12) The Processing of claims in February in preparation for the new
processes are made when appropriate. Currently there are four vacant posts plus an financial wear, always results in good processing times. Performance should

Officer on maternity leave. These wacancies are having an impact but resources are therefore be on target to achieve an average of 8 days over the year, dependent
bieing managed to target performance for the KPI's, whilst activities not relating to upan the staffing level not deteriorating further.

performance improvement are not being prioritised.




KEl 3% How many benefits fraud investigations were completed by the Council?

Indicater previeusly known as: LPI1 53

Additional Information: This indicator monitors the effectiveness of the Benefit Fraud Team

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

500 Quarter Target Actual :
450
384 Q3/11/12 375 384 -
400
350 02711712 250 231 .
301
285
200 O1/11/12 125 78 .
250 231
0 Q4/10/11 200 301 .
1 117 03/10/11 225 204 . y
1 78
Al Annual 201112 - 500 Is it Iikely that the
50 Target: 201011 -300 target will be met
b Indicator of good performance: atthe end ofthe
: ear?
Qafoefi0 Qi/10f11  Qxfiofi11  Q3f10/11 Qaf10f11  Qi/iifiz  Q2fiifiz  Q3fiifiz A higher number is good 'F'. ; .
ncertain

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) Individual targets for the Investigation Officers have all been metin | [(Quarter 3 2011/12) The Investigation Officers in post did all achieve their personal
both Quarter 2 and Quarter 3. However, the lack of a Senior Officer in a vacant post targets for guarters 2 and 3 and have made up some of the shortfall from quarter 1.
means that some of the day to day management and supervision has been lacking and | [A planned exercise for checking the residency of claimants should help with the

the Officers have not always received the level of guidance and support that we wauld performance figures in quarter 4. The additional vacancy on the section now raises
like. In addition to the existing vacancy, one of the Investigation Officers left at the end of | |uncertainty as to whether the target will be achieved.

Movember creating a further vacancy on the section.




cg abed

Epping Forest
District Council

E

2010/ 11 Key Performance Indicators

Housing

KPI
41 45
42 46
43 47

44 48



KFl 41 On average, how many days did it take us to re-let a Council proper‘ty?

Indicator previeusly known as: LP]1 05

Additional Information: This indicator measures the Council's housing management performance, as it is important that property re-let
times are kept to a minimum in view of current pressures on social housing

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

100 Quarter Target Actual :
o0
Q311712 20 32 .
80
70 Q2711712 20 a4 .
60 54 s Q1/11/12 20 30 ﬁ
50
Q4710711 20 chi .
s 32 32 34 32
31 30
= 03/10/11 30 3z . y
Annual 201112 - 30 days Is it likely that the
1 Target: 201011 -30 days target will be met
¥ Q4107708 04708105 04/08/20 ©1/20/11 Q2/20/11 03/20/13 Q4720731 QL/12/12 Q21212 12 Indi5alor &l goge pEromMance: :;;r;: sndorie
Q4/07/08 Q4/08/09 Q4/05/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10/11 Q4/10/11 Q1/11/12 Q2/11/12 Q3f11f A lower number of days is good . reerta
ncertain
Zomment on current performance {including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:
(Qluarter 3 2011412) (Cluarter 3 2011/12) Please see previous comments
Although perfarmance is almost on target, the following actions will be undertaken to
iMnparoye;

Continuation of the “oids Waorking Party

Cormpletion of new void standard

Performance output specification being piloted where contractor undertakes entire
repairs process, saving time and removing the need for officer inspections
Consider weekly property lists for CBL

Advertise difficult to |et properties in local press




KP142  What percentage of emergency repairs to our council properties were completed within 24 hours?

Indicator previeusly known as: LPI 07

Additional Information: This indicator is a measure of housing management performance, as it is incumbent upon the Council as landlord to
ensure the upkeep of its dwellings and that repairs are completed on time. The target time for the completion of emergency repairs is
twenty-four hours.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01952 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

99% 99% 97% 99% 98% 98%, 98% 98%, 98% 98%, A
100 Quarter Target Actual -—
Q3/11/12 Q9% Q3%
80
Q25117512 Q9% Q8%
60 Q1/11/12 =lal-"3 989
Q4/10/11 Q9% Q3%
40
Q3510411 Q9% Q8%
Annual 201112 -99% Is it Iikely that the
Target: 2010/1 -99% target will be met
b Indicator of good performance: atthe end ofthe
. ear?
Qa/07/08 Q4/08/09 Q4/09f10 Q1/10f11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10/11 Q4/10f11 Q11112 Q2f11/12 Q3/11/12 A higher percentage is good i y
Bs

Zomment on current performance {including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) In January 2012 the Mears 1T systern was implemented within the (Cluarter 3 2011/12) Performance below target and continued focus within Housing
Housing Repairs Service which, once fully established, is expected to significantly Fepairs Service to improve performance of this indicator,
irmprove performance - particularly from April 2012,




KP143  What percentage of urgent repairs to our council properties were cqmqllete.d‘wi__thin five working

days?

Indicator previcusly known as: LPI 08

Additional Information: This indicator is a measure of housing management performance, as it is incumbent upon the Council as landlord to
ensure the upkeep of its dwellings and that repairs are completed on time. The target time for the completion of urgent repairs is five
days.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Uinit by email on performance@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01952 554472

Current and prexvious quarters performance

100 _sg% 930, TS Quarter Target Actual :
B&% B5%, Ba&%
Q3/11/12 959 6%
80 - 75%0 .
Wt NS 02/11/12 959 91% .
57%
60 | 01/11/12 959 75% .
04/10/11 959 60% .
40
& Q3/10/11 959 69% . -
@
2000 =
o) Annual 201112 -95% Is it Ilkely that the
Target: 2010/11 - 95% target will be met
at the end of the
¥ 07/08 04/08/09 Q4/09/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10/11 Q4/10/11 Q1/11/12 Q2/11/12 12 lndicatat of good perrarmance: year?
Q4/07/08 Q4/08f09 Q4/09f10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10f11 Q4/10/11 Q1/11/12 Q2/11/12 Q3/11f A higher percentage is good . ! o
NCEertaln

Zomment on current performance {including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) In January 2012 the Mears 1T systern was implemented within the (Cluarter 3 2011/12)

Housing Repairs Service which, once fully established, is expected to significantly Additional focus has been placed on achieving Urgent jobs within timescale.
irmprove performance - particularly from April 2012, = All jobs raised on the urgent priority will be reviewed to ensure that they are raised
an the correct priority.

Performance has still failed to achieve target of 93%. This guarter has seen a significant ||« Assistant Area Fepairs Managers, will increase monitoring of Urgent works orders
increase in the numbers of jobs reparted on this indicatar. approaching due date.

Mumber of jobs previously reported: Q1 165, Q2 270, Q3 570, = Trade operatives reminded about need to achieve completion on or before due
date.




KEl 44 What percentage of routine repairs to our council properties were completed within six week:s-?-

Indicator previeusly known as: LPI 09

Additional Information: This indicator is a measure of housing management performance, as it is incumbent upon the Council as landlord to
ensure the upkeep of its dwellings and that repairs are completed on time. The target time for the completion of routine repairs is six
weeks.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01952 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

we s 9290 92% 6% 6% 6% Quarter Target  Actual i
gao,  B86% 89% gy
Q3/11/12 Q5% Q5%
“ L
Q211712 Q5% Q5%
60 - Q1/11/12 05%, 06%
Q4410411 Q5% Q2%
‘n -
gj 03/10/11 Q5% a7%%
(@
200D -
(00 Annual 201112 -95% Is it Ilkely that the
~ Target: 2010/M1 -95% target will be met
i Indicator of good performance: atthe ang.akthe
g ear?
Q4/07/08 Q4/08/09 Qa/09/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10/11 Qa/10/11 Q171112 QXf11/12 Q3f11f12 A higher percentage is good i y
ES

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) Performance above target, (Cluarter 3 2011/12) None reguired at this time.




KPl145  How satisfied were our tenants with the standard of the repairs service they received?

Additional Information: This indicator is a measure of housing management performance, as it is incumbent upon the Council as landlord to
ensure the upkeep of its dwellings and that repairs are completed on time and to the satisfaction of tenants

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

98.00% 98.00% 98.51% 99.60% 99.00% 99.00% 99.00%

Indicator previcusly known as: LPI1 10

100.00% g9_pp%

Quarter Target Actual :

90

03/11/12  98.00%  99.00% -
80
7 02/11/12  98.00% 100.00% -
60 01/11/12  98.00%
50

Q4/10/11  98.00%  99.00% .

03/10/11  98.00%  99.00% - =

Annual 201112 -98.00% Is itlikelythatthe
10 Target: 2010/11 - 98.00% target will be met
5 07/08 04/08/09 Q4/09/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10/11 Q4/10/11 Q1/11/12 Q2/11/12 12 lndicatat of good perrarmance: :;;r;: snd ofthe

Q4/07/08 Q4/08f09 Q4/09f10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10f11 Q4/10/11 Q1/11/12 Q2/11/12 Q3/11f A higher percentage is good . y
ES5

Comment on current performance (including context):

Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12)
Ferformance above target.

(Quarter 3 2011/12)




KP146  How many affordable homes were built in the District?

Indicater previously known as: Nl 155

Additional Information: This indicator promotes an increase in the supply of affordable housing through new-build completions, changes of
use and conversions. Quarterly targets and performance details for this indicator represent the cumulative total for the year to date.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

Current and prexvious quarters performance

200 Quarter Target Actual
175
3711712 26 15
= Q3/11/
150 Q2711712 44 15
125
Q1/11/12 a 0
100
Q4710711 70 151
75 63
52 Q3710711 52 5z
34 37
27 -
15 15 Annual 201112 -112 Is it likely that the
o Target: 2010/11 - 70 target will be met
¢ | | | | Indicator of good performance: at the and.shthe
: ear?
Q4/08f09 Q4/09/10 Q171011 Q2/10f11 Q3f10711 Q4/10f11 Qi1/11f12 Q2fi1f12 Q3fiifi12 A higher number is good ¥
H
Zomment on current performance {including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:
(Quarter 3 2011/12) The no. of completions up to Quarter 3 is lower than originally (Cluarter 3 2011/12) Due to the long lead-in time to housing developments, it is not
anticipated at the beginning of the year, due to significant delays on site at the large possible to correct the shortfall in 201112, However, the shortfall in numbers is not
White Lodge development, sewardstone Hoad, Waltham Abbey. 50 new affordable due to non-completions, it is due to some completion dates now falling into 2012413,
hiames were expected to be completed in Quarters 2 and 3, but will not now be instead of 2011412,
campleted until at least Quarter 4. A further 16 affordable homes are also expected for
Quarter 4.

It is unlikley that the target will be met for 201112, However, delayed completions will be
carried forward to 2011/12.




KFl 47 How many households were housed in temporary accommodation?

Indicateor previeusly known as: Nl 156

Additional Information: This indicator monitors progress towards reducing the number of households in temporary accommeodation
provided under homelessness legislation. Annual performance is judged on the return for quarter 4.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

100 — Quarter Target Actual :
g-n Lo
Q3/11/12 60 57 .
“ =
- Qzfiijie 60 61
" 60 61 g5 .
56
60 52 = 52 Q1/11/12 60 sz [V
46 47
5“ -
Q4/10/11 60 47 .
W0
-] Q3/10/11 60 =0 - =
@
205
) Annual 2011/12 - 60
Sl i Target: 2010/11 - 60
a

Indicator of good performance:

Q4/08/09 Q4f09f10 Q1/10f11 Q2/10/11 Q3f10f11 Q4/10/11 Qifi1/12 Q2fi1fi12z Q3f11/12 A lower number is good

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

Is it likely that the
target will be met
at the end of the

year?

. Lincertain

(Quarter 3 2011/12) Performance above target, (Cluarter 3 2011/12)




KEl 43 What percentage of our council homes were not in a decent condition?

Indicateor previeusly known as: Ml 158

Additional Information: This indicator measures the number of non-decent council homes and the proportion this represents of the total
council housing stock, in order to demonstrate progress towards making all council housing decent. Performance against this indicator is
reported at year-end only.

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Uinit by email on performance@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01952 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

5 — Quarter Target Actual :

Q3/11/12 0.00% 0.00%
Q2711712 0.00% 0.00%
Q1711712 0.00% 0.00%

Q4/10/11 0.00% 0.00%

[N
I

1 —

o 150%

D Q4/09/10 0.00% 0.00% v

@
10 o

© Annual 201112 -0.00% Is it IIKEI}F that the

. 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% G:00% 0.00% Target: 2010/11 - 0.00% target will be met
$ Indicator of good performance: artns andelthe

d ear?
Q4/08/09 Q4/09/10 Q4/10/11 Qif11/12 QXfi11/12 Qifi1/12 A lower percentage is good i y
es

Comment on current performance (including context):

Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) Potential Non-Decent failures have been identified on the Stock (Cluarter 3 2011/12) None reguired at this time
Condition survey for 2012-13 and appropriate Capital and Eevenue works programrmes
have commenced to prevent these properies falling into the Non-Decent category.

Z Drive/Stock Condition survey 2012-13 shows:-
Criteria 'A' Minimurn Standard 0-properties

Criteria 'B' Reasonable State of Repair

OGas central heating 513

OElectrical Testing 1,168

ORoof covering 342

Criteria 'C' Reasonahle Modern Facilities

Okitchen and Bathroom combined failures 0 properties

It is anticipated that all the potential Mon-Decent properties will be completed as part of
the planned Capital and Revenue works programmes for 2011-12.




26 abed

Epping Forest
District Council

E

2010/ 11 Key Performance Indicators

Planning & Economic
Development

KPI
50 53
51 54

52 55



KElI50 What was the net increase or decrease in the number of homes in the district?

Indicator previeusly known as: Nl 154

Additional Information: This indicator encourages a greater supply of new homes to address long-term housing affordability issues, and
measures the net increase in dwelling stock over one year. Quarterly targets and performance details for this indicator represent the
cumulative total for the year to date,

Far enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

400 rt Target  Actual A
x5 Quarter arge ua -
350 Q3/11/12 113 223 .
e Q2/11/12 72 140 .
250
= o Q1/11/12 20 o2 .
200 176
157
o - s Q4/10/11 180 356 .
Q3/10/11 135 993 - -
1
59
23 Annual 201112 -180 Is it Iikely that the
|_| Target: 201011 -180 target will be met
at the end of the
¢ Indicator of good performance: Lt
Q4/08/09 Q4/09/10 QL/10/11 ©2/10/11 ©3/10/11 Q4/10/11 Q1/11/12 ©Q2/11/12 Q3/11/12 A highar numb&r is gosd 1".
YES

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 2011/12) Performance has reached and exceeded the target for this quarter. |[(Quarter 3 2011/12) Mo corrective action is proposed, as performance has reached
and exceeded the target.




KEl 51 What percentage of major planning applications were processed within 13 weeks?-

Indicator previeusly known as: Nl 157 (3}

Additional Information: This indicator ensures that local planning authorities determine major planning applications in a timely manner
(within thirteen weeks).

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

100 92.86% Quarter Target Actual :
85.71% 85.00% 84.62% B85.71% 86.96%
90
79.07% 82.76% | os11/12  81.00%  B2.76% u
“ =
70 . 02/11/12 81.00%  86.96% -
59.38%
60 01/11/12  91.00%  95.71% ‘
50
04/10/11  81.00%  84.62% n
03/10/11  81.00%  85.00% - =
Annual 201112 -81.00% Is itlikelythatthe
10 Target: 2010/11 - 81.00% target will be met
Y itniie i Re TR AR R AL R AT RATI AR B aRE 12 lndicatat of good perrarmance: :;;r;: snd ofthe
Q4/07/08 Q4/08f09 Q4/09f10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10f11 Q4/10/11 Q1/11/12 Q2/11/12 Q3/11f A higher percentage is good . | -
NCEertaln

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3) 24 out of 29 applications meet target requirernent. Still some uncertainty on
whether target will be achieved as figure is volatile and vulnerable to change due to the
low number of applications in this category,




KEl 52 What percentage of minor planning applications were processed within ﬁ'week.g?-

Indicater previeusly known as: NI 157(bj _

Additional Information: This indicator ensures that local planning authorities determine ‘minor’ planning applications in a timely manner
(within eight weeks).

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

100 Quarter Target Actual :
% 83.33%  §2.46%
B0.55%
78.05% 7964% T967% oo 7650% TIY% . Q3/11/12  81.00%  74.22% .
70 Q211712 21.00% 77.25% .
60 01/11/12 81.00%  76.54% .
50
Q4410411 20.00% 20.55%
“ V]
Q3/10/11 80.00%  22.46% “ -
Annual 201112 -81.00% Is it Iikely that the
10 Target: 201011 -80.00% target will be met
e Indicator of good performance: AL e endalis
§ ear?
Q4/07/08 Q4/08/09 Qa/09/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10/11 Qa/10/11 Q171112 QXf11/12 Q3f11f12 A higher percentage is good ¥

o -

Zomment on current performance {including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3 190 out of 256 applications in this category decided within target tirme for first | [(Cuarter 3 2011/12)

hialf of the year that includes applications for 1 to 9 dwellings/ pitches. Target proving Tighten up on monitoring and validation of planning applications by senior officers.
tougher than previous year to achieve with cormmittees now meeting on 4 week cycle and | |Closer scrutiny when committee deadling is due and try to target the earliest
section being a professional officer down due to recruitment restriction. committee in time. Refrain from negotiation with the applicant during the course of

planning applications but this could be deemed to be at the expense of good
custormer service. Mernbers to be reminded not to defer items at Committees when
advice can be sought heforehand from the relevant case officer whose details are at
the end of each iterm.




KEl 53 What percentage of other planning applications were processed within 8 weeks?

Indicater previously known as: Ml 157(c)

Additional Information: This indicator ensures that local planning authorities determine "other' planning applications in a timely manner
(within eight weeks).

Foar enquiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Linit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 019592 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

e go.270 89.88% S3U5% 9180% 9251% 9224% 92.21% 9267% 9277% 91829 Quarter  Target  Actual i
g-n =
Q3/11/12  93.00%  91.82% .
80
70 Q2/11/12  93.00%  92.77% .
60 Q1/11/12  93.00%  92.67% .
50
Q4710411 92,219%
Q3/10/11 92,249% v
Annual 201112 -93.00% Is it Iikely that the
1" Target: 2010/11 - N/A target will be met
at the end of the
¢ Indicator of good performance: aar?
Q4/07/08 Q4/08B/09 Q4/09/10 Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3/10/11 Q4/10/11 Q1/11/12 Q2/11/12 Q3/11/12 A higher percentage is good ‘”’. :
Uncertain

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 31 A percentage fall in this quarter, likely to be attributable to being one officer | [(Quarters 2011/12)

down for the whole of this guarter, but this represents the highest proportion (965 out of || Tighten up on monitoring and validation of planning applications by senior officers.
1051 in this cateqory) out of all planning application types decided, most of which are Closer scrutiny when committee deadline is due and try to target the earliest
delegated decisions dealt within time. committee in time. Refrain from negotiation with the applicant during the course of
planning applications but this could be deemed to be at the expense of good
custormer service.




KEl 54 What percentage of planning applications recommended by planning officers for refusal were
overturned and granted permission following an appeal?

Indicator previeusly known as: [new)

Additional Information: This indicator is expressed as a percentage of the no. of appeals lodged and seeks to assess the levels of

applications that may be refused in order to meet development control performance targets. It measures the performance of only Officer
Recommendations for refusal of planning permission

Foar enguiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Uinit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 01992 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

100 Quarter Target Actual :
00
Q3/11/12 20.00% 18.18% .
80
70 Q25117512 20.00% 22.22% .
60 Q1/11/12 20.00% 22.20% .
50
Q4/10/11
40
22.20% 22.22% Q3/10/11 v
18.18%
Annual 201112 - 20.00% Is it Iikely that the
10 Target: 2010111 - N/A target will be met
¢ Indicator of good performance: ALThe encokine
: ear?
Q1/10/11 Q2/10/11 Q3f10/11 Q4/10/11 Q1/11f12 Q2fi1f12 Q3f11/12 A lower percentage is good 'F'. ; .
ncertain

Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:

(Quarter 3) Onlky & out of 44 officer recommendation/decision appeals allowed. Target
being achieved.




KEl 5% What percentage of planning applications, refused by Council Members against the planning

officer's recommendation, were granted permission on appeal?

Indicater previcusly known as: (new)

Additional Information: This indicator is expressed as a percentage of the no. of appeals lodged and seeks to assess the levels of
applications that may be refused in order to meet development control performance targets. It measures the performance of only Officer
Recommendations for refusal of planning permission

Foar enguiries regarding this indicator contact the Performance Improvement Uinit by email on performance@eppingforestdc. gov.uk or by telephone on 01992 554472

current and previous gquarters performance

100 Quarter Target Actual :
20
Q311712 E0.00% 56.25%
” x|
70 Q2711712 E0.00%  46.15% .
56.25%
60 50.00% Q1/11/12 E0.00%  C0.00% -
s0 i 46.15%
Q4710711
Q3710711 y
Annual 201112 - 50.00% Is it Iikely that the
19 Target: 2010411 - N/A target will be met
¢ Indicator of good performance: at the and.shthe
: ear?
Q1/10/11 Q2f10/11 Q3f10/11 Q4/10/11 Q1f11/12 Q2f11/12 Q3ifi1/12 A lower percentage is good ¥ .
. Lncertain
Comment on current performance (including context): Corrective action proposed (if required }:
(Quarter 3) Members decisions to reverse officer recommendations on planning (Cluarter 3% Up to this quarter the target was being met. Members are reminded that
applications reported to planning committees were supported by the Planning Inspector | (they should consider very carefully that when overturning officers recommendations
in ¥ out of 16 cases. This falls just outside of the target, where half of the appeal at planning committees, they do so with reasonable confidence that the application

decisions are required to be supported. will be dismissed on appeal.




2012/13 Key Performance Indicators - Targets

Directorate

2012/13
KPI
Ref. No.

Description

2009/10
Outturn

2010/11
Outturn

201112
Target

Q3
201112

Proposed
Target
2012/13

Comments / Justification for Proposed Target 2012/13

DCE

66 obed

KPI 01

What progress did we make with our work
on equality and diversity? How well did the
Council comply with the Equality
Framework for Local Government (EFLG)?
(Annual)

Level 1

Level 1

Level 2

N/A

Level 2

The EFLG assesses performance at three levels (Level 1 —
‘Developing’; Level 2 — ‘Achieving’; and Level 3 —
‘Excellent’). Although performance is a self-assessment
measure, accreditation at the ‘Achieving’ and ‘Excellent’
levels is validated by a formal challenge process.

The Council undertook an informal external evaluation of
its performance against EFLG in 2010, which indicated
that it could be in a position to seek accreditation to Level 2
in 2010/11, and a target of the achievement of Level 2 was
set for KPI 01. The recommendations of the assessment
have been progressed, and are substantially complete,
however, the cost of the formal Level 2 challenge is
considered an unacceptable expense and whilst the
Council’s performance against the EFLG for 2011/12 is
anticipated to be at Level 2, this cannot be formally
verified. Progress against the EFLG action plan for
2011/12, will be reported to the Finance and Performance
Management Scrutiny Panel in June 2012.

Whilst the Council cannot validate its performance against
the EFLG, it is important to ensure a continued focus on
the achievement of statutory equality duties in the absence
of any formal accreditation against the EFLG. The
framework has recently been revised, and the Level 2
target should be retained for 2012/13.

DCE

KPI 04

What percentage of visitors to the council
website were satisfied with their
experience? (Annual)

70% (New
Indicator)

N/A

80%

Whilst this indicator was a new indicator for 2011/12 and
we do not currently have the current year's outturn, the
target has been raised for 2012/13 in the light of the
upcoming launch of our new website and the wish to set an
aspirational target for the new site.




201213

KPI Description 2009/10 | 2010/11 2011/12 Q3 Proposed| Comments / Justification for Proposed Target 2012/13
Directorate Ref. No. Outturn Outturn Target [2011/12] Target
2012/13
Corporate KPI110 ||How many working days did we lose due to 8.35 7.86 7.75 5.37 | 7.75 days |Consistent improvment in this indicator has been seen over
Support sickness absence? the last few years. To allow for a period of consolidation
Services and reinforcement of the improvements made in recent
years and in the light of the improved levels we are seeing,
it is considered appropriate to maintain the current year's
target for 2012/13.
KPI 11 ||What percentage of the rent we were due 4.3% 3.1% 3.0% N/A 3.0% |Economic conditions remain difficult and it is felt entirely
to be paid for our commercial premises was appropriate to retain the current year's target level for
not paid? (Annual) 2012/13.
)
Q
«Q
()
—
o
o
KPI112 ||What percentage of our commercial 97.63% | 97.63% 99.00% N/A 98.00% |With economic conditions continuing to be challenging and

premises was let to tenants? (Annual)

with the impact that a small number of vacancies can have
on the volatility of performance against this indicator, it is
considered that current performance levels may be difficult
to maintain. A slightly reduced target has therefore been
set for the year ahead but may be revisited following the
outturn of the current year's performance.




201213

KPI Description 2009/10 | 2010/11 2011/12 Q3 Proposed| Comments / Justification for Proposed Target 2012/13
Directorate Ref. No. Outturn Outturn Target [2011/12] Target
2012/13
Environment | KPI120 ||How much non-recycled waste was 447kg 392kg 420kg 287kg 400kg |Given our performance in 2011/12 to Q3 and allowing for a
& Street collected for every household in the district? slight increase in performance post-Christmas, we would
Scene be expecting a 2011/12 outcome of around 400kg. Taking
that forward as a target for 2012/13 is ambitious and will
be a significant challenge to achieve?

KPI 21 ||What percentage of all household waste 51.17% | 59.14% 58.00% |60.79% 60% |With expected recycling performance for 2011/12 around
was sent to be recycled, reused or 60% to 61%, and aware of the continuous need to keep
composted? improving and raise our targets, a target of 60% for

2012/13 is now proposed. As with KPI 20 above, this is
ambitious and will represent a challenge to achieve for a a
second consecutive year?

.

Q

«Q

(0]

—

9 KPI 22 ||What percentage of our district had 11% 9% 10% 7% 9% The targets for both KPI 22 and KPI 23 are currently

unacceptable levels of litter?

subject to some review to ascertain if there is a more
accurate method of targeting and measuring performance
across the year as opposed to being vulnerable to the
vagaries of the time of year and particular transects of land
chosen. As it stands this indicator's end of year outturn is
entirely dependent upon the Q4 performance. Pending the
outcome of that review these targets are included as worst
case scenarios which should be achievable throughout the
year but accepting that we would hope at times to exceed
the targets given performance against these KPIs at
certain points in 2011/12




201213

KPI Description 2009/10 | 2010/11 2011/12 Q3 Proposed| Comments / Justification for Proposed Target 2012/13
Directorate Ref. No. Outturn Outturn Target [2011/12] Target
2012/13
Environment | KPI23 |[What percentage of our district had 13% 1% 13% 5% 12% |(see KPI 22 above)
& Street unacceptable levels of detritus (dust, mud,
Scene stones, rotted leaves, glass, plastic etc.)?

KPI 24 ||How well have we done in both reducing Grade 3 | Grade 3 Grade 3 |Grade 1| Grade 2 |Having developed a much better understanding of the
flytipping and taking action against those amount and nature of the work and action being taken in
believed to be responsible? relation to this indicator we are now more able to

accurately assess performance. We have finally moved
away from a static Grade 3 position and have even

;JU managed one quarter at Grade 1 in 2011/12. For the year

« ahead it is thought appropriate to raise the target to Grade

® 2 which will challenge us to maintain our improved

5 performance across an extended period.

N

KPI 25 ||What percentage of the issues and 97.09% | 96.60% 97.00% |97.80% 95% |This target was reduced from 97% to 95% for 2011/12 in

complaints received by the Environment &
Neighbourhoods Team received an initial
response within 3 days?

agreement with the September 2011 meeting of the
Finance & Performance Management Scrutiny Panel.
Whilst performance since that point has gone on to exceed
the revised target, it is important to maintain a realistic
expectation for the year ahead and it is thought prudent to
retain the target at 95% for 2012/13 for the same reasons
that lead to the reduction in last year's target eg. the
importance of prioritisation of responses according to need
rather than in order to achieve better KPI results.




201213

KPI Description 2009/10 | 2010/11 2011/12 Q3 Proposed| Comments / Justification for Proposed Target 2012/13
Directorate Ref. No. Outturn Outturn Target [2011/12| Target
2012/13
Finance & ICT| KPI30 |[|What percentage of the invoices we 98% 97% 97% 92% 97% |The target proposed for 2012/13 is the same as 2011/12.
received were paid within 30 days? Whilst the target will not be met in 2011/12, performance is
moving in the right direction and providing performance
starts around the target level this should be achievable.
KPI 31 [||What percentage of the district's annual 97.48% | 97.85% 97.80% |78.03%| 97.80% |Performance this year is likely to just achieve the target. In
Council Tax was collected? view of this and the ongoing difficulties in the economy it is
appropriate to hold the target constant as that in itself
represents a significant challenge.
.
Q
«Q
(0]
—
8 KPI1 32 ||What percentage of the district's annual 97.56% | 97.47% 98.00% |81.07% | 97.50% |Performance this year is likely to fall short of the target. In

business rates was collected?

view of this and the ongoing difficulties in the economy it is
appropriate to reduce the target to the 2010/11 outturn
level as that represents a significant challenge.




201213

KPI Description 2009/10 | 2010/11 2011/12 Q3 Proposed| Comments / Justification for Proposed Target 2012/13
Directorate Ref. No. Outturn Outturn Target [2011/12] Target
2012/13
Finance & ICT| KPI33 ||On average, how many days did it take us 33.41 |22.96 days| 23.00 26.88 | 30 days |In view of the fact that there are vacant posts and there will
to process new benefit claims? days days be 3 Officers in assessment posts on maternity leave,
performance will not be at a high level. A target of 30 days
will be challenging but hopefully achievable. If external
recruitment takes place, the target can be reduced.

KPI 34 ||On average, how many days did it take us 4.85 days | 4.67 days| 8.00 days 8.93 | 8.00 days |Although there are vacant posts and there will be Officers
to process notices of a change in a benefit on maternity leave, a target of 8 days should be achievable
claimant's circumstances?

)
Q
«Q
()
—
o
AN
KPI 35 ||How many benefits fraud investigations 285 301 500 384 150 With 2 vacant posts and an Officer that will be on maternity|

were completed by the Council?

leave, there will only be one Investigation Officer for the
majority of the year. A higher target will not be achievable.
If external recruitment takes place, the target can be
increased.




201213

KPI Description 2009/10 | 2010/11 2011/12 Q3 |Proposed] Comments / Justification for Proposed Target 2012/13
Directorate Ref. No. Outturn Outturn Target [2011/12| Target
2012/13
Housing KPI140 [|What percentage of the rent due from our 97.74% | 98.14% 97.00% N/A | 97.00% |The rent collection rate for the year can only be calculated
council home tenants was paid? (Annual) annually. There is no reason to change the challenging
target set for 2011/12 next year. The target should
continue to achieve top quartile performance.
KPI1 41 ||On average, how many days did it take us 28 days | 31 days 30 days 32 30 Based on the Out-turn for 2011/12 and Q3 of 2011/12, the
to re-let a Council property? current target is considered to be appropriate
.
Q
L(% KPI142 ||What percentage of emergency repairs to 97% 98% 99% 98% 99% | The main benefits of the Private Repairs Management
— our council properties were completed Contract with Mears are expected to be received in
8 within 24 hours? 2012/13, particularly now that the Mears ICT system has

been installed.

Although the contract with Mears has more challenging
targets than the Council's publicly stated repairs targets,
the Council's stated targets are set out in the Council's
Local Housing Standards sent to all tenants. Moreover, it
is important to compare Mears' performance in 2012/13
with the Council's performance prior to the appointment of
Mears.

Therefore, it is suggested that the target remains the same
in 2012/13 for this comparison to be made, and that the
target be reviewed for 2013/14 on the basis of the
performance in 2012/13.




201213

KPI Description 2009/10 | 2010/11 2011/12 Q3 |Proposed] Comments / Justification for Proposed Target 2012/13
Directorate Ref. No. Outturn Outturn Target [2011/12| Target
2012/13
Housing KPI143 ||What percentage of urgent repairs to our 93% 69% 95% 86 95% |As for KPI 42 above
council properties were completed within
five working days?
KPI1 44 ||What percentage of routine repairs to our 95% 92% 95% 96 95% |As for KPI 42 above
council properties were completed within six
weeks?
)
Q
«Q
o
—
o
(o)}
KPI145 ||How satisfied were our tenants with the 98.51% | 99.00% 98.00% | 99.00% | 98.00% |[This is a very challenging target that would be difficult to

standard of the repairs service they
received?

improve upon any further




201213

KPI Description 2009/10 | 2010/11 2011/12 Q3 |Proposed] Comments / Justification for Proposed Target 2012/13
Directorate Ref. No. Outturn Outturn Target [2011/12| Target
2012/13
Housing KPI146 ||How many affordable homes were built in 63 151 112 15 34 This is based on the number of affordable homes already
the District? on site, that are expected to be completed during 2013/14.
as follows:
(a) Sewardstone Rd, Waltham Abbey - 29
(b) Church Hill, Loughton - 5
KPI147 ||How many households were housed in 46 47 60 57 60 Based on the Out-turn for 2011/12 and Q3 of 2011/12, the
temporary accommodation? current target is considered to be appropriate
.
Q
«Q
(0]
—
3 KP148 ||What percentage of our council homes 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% | 0.00% |The Council should seek to ensure that it does not have

were not in a decent condition?

any non-decent homes - especially since the Council is
now striving to maintain the Council's housing stock to a full
(modern) maintenance standard




Directorate

2012/13
KPI
Ref. No.

Description (New)

2009/10
Outturn

2010/11
Outturn

2011/12
Target

Q3
2011/12

Proposed
Target
2012/13

Comments / Justification for Proposed Target 2012/13

Planning &
Economic
Development

80| obed

KPI 50

What was the net increase or decrease in
the number of homes in the district?

176

356

180

223

180

It is considered appropriate that the target should remain
the same as in 2011/12. This was based on a residual
target from the East of England Plan and with no new
housing targets as yet to work towards, there is not a
ready made alternative target to use. This may change in
future years following agreement of a new Local Plan.
With the exception of the last couple of years when
building has increased as several larger sites have been
completed, this has been a relatively tough target to meet

KPI 51

What percentage of major planning
applications were processed within 13
weeks?

67.86%

84.62%

81.00%

82.76%

81.00%

The number of planning applications in this category is
relatively low compared with KPIs 52 and 53 and are
therefore volatile and liable to large percentage swings
should applications be deferred or not meet the 13 week
target for reporting to planning committees. The target of
81% is still quite a challenge and has only just been
achieved in the last 2 years.

KPI 52

What percentage of minor planning
applications were processed within 8
weeks?

79.67%

80.55%

81.00%

74.22%

79.00%

This category includes planning applications between 1
and 9 houses or flats and if minded to be recommended
for approval, inevitably are reported to planning
committees for a decision. The move from a 3 to a 4
week area planning committee cycle in 2011 has
impacted on this category in particular, making it more
difficult to make a decision within 8 weeks. Unless further
relaxations are made to the current scheme of delegated
decision making, the outturns of 2009/10 and 2010/11
are not going to be repeated and a more realistic

challenge would be a high seventies percentage target.




2012/13

KPI Description (New) 2009/10 | 2010/11 2011/12 Q3 Proposed] Comments / Justification for Proposed Target 2012/13
Directorate Ref. No. Outturn Outturn Target 2011/12 | Target
2012/13
Planning & KPI 53 ||What percentage of other planning 93.05% | 92.21% 93.00% 91.82% | 93.00% |This category includes householder extensions, which
Economic applications were processed within 8 makes up the highest number of planning application
Development weeks? types. It is recommended that the target be retained at its
present level, because an increase is not going to be
achievable with the 4 week committee cycle.
KPI 54 ||What percentage of planning applications N/A N/A 20.00% 18.18% | 19.00% |Officer recommendation and delegated refused decisions
recommended by planning officers for have performed well and therefore lowering the target
refusal were overturned and granted should prove a considerable challenge in 2012/13.
permission following an appeal (a lower
figure is better and is expressed as a
percentage of the number of appeals
lodged)?
o
Q
[o) KPI 55 ||What percentage of planning applications, N/A N/A 50.00% 56.25% | 50.00% |This is still a realistic target and therefore should be
— refused by Council Members against the retained for the coming year, where the reasonable
o recommendation of the planning officers, expectancy is that at least half the Member decisions will
© were granted permission following an be dismissed on appeal.
appeal (a lower figure is better and is
expressed as a percentage of the number
of appeals lodge
KPI 56 [|How much of the land required to meet our|| 164.76% | 144.00% 100% 136.01% | 100.00% |1t is proposed that the target should remain at 100.00%.
house building needs over the next five Year-end The government considers that any return of 100.00% or
years was available to be delivered over figure more to be a good performance.

the next five years? (Annual)




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	5 Terms of Reference / Work Programme
	WorkProgramme

	6 Sickness Absences
	Appendix 1 - Sickness
	Appendix 2 - Sickness

	7 Quarterly Financial Monitoring
	Qtr Finance Monitoring Annex 1-9
	Qtr Finance Monitoring Annex 10 to 17

	8 Information and Communication Technology Update
	9 Key Performance Indicators 2011/12 -Quarter 3 Performance Monitoring
	Appendix 1 - KPI
	Appendix 2 - KPI
	Appendix 3


